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105,884,322 98,180,790 99,472,780 95,820,643 80,402,846

7,261,647 4,118,064 8,409,000 6,948,560 10,560,951

5,064,861 4,518,093 6,909,353 10,202,609 14,611,950

( ) 4,285,007 3,614,961 5,302,151 7,961,576 12,147,259
467,538 351,319 486,394 420,754 246,709

3,817,469 3,263,642 4,815,757 7,540,822 11,900,550

EBITDA (1) 18,651,021 15,141,290 18,815,128 16,421,288 19,490,106
EBITDAR (2) 24,128,313 20,062,145 22,977,006 21,021,753 23,573,805
( 0.31 0.27 0.40 0.62 1.02
( 7.07 6.07 9.64 16.32 28.79
« D
EBITDA
EBITDAR
EBITDA
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76,004,278
4,513,195,722 1,639,000,000 2,874,195,722
2006 CNAC 69
2007 24 CNAC
CITIC
SPAC
CNAC
13.5 288,596,335 433
CITIC SPAC 359,170,636 40,128,292
13.5
0.32
1,179,151,364 3.45
2006 CNAC CITIC SPAC
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1,179,151,364 3.45
69 4,057
1,179 2,874
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2014 2013 10.22 193,631 2013
8.96 154,684 2013 0.93 79.89
2013 17.13 10,148
2013 13.47 5,691 2013
1.81 56.08
2014 A320 A330 B737-800 B747-8 B777-300ER B777F
67 A340-300 B737 B747-400 B757-200 B767-300ER 24
2014 12 31 6.08 540
2014 12 31
2015 2016 2017
519 226 153 140 6.04 63 36 38
256 97 93 66 5.46 23 17 17
A319 40 24 9 7 9.68 3 0 0
A320/A321 163 59 66 38 4.52 16 17 17
A330 49 10 18 21 4.27 4 0 0
A340 4 4 0 0 16.26 0 0 0
263 129 60 74 6.62 40 19 21
B737 223 105 47 71 6.41 37 14 16
B747 8 8 0 0 9.71 3 0 0
B757 2 2 0 0 22.37 0 0 0
B777 30 14 13 3 6.32 0 0 0
B787 0 0 0 0 - 0 5 5
12 10 2 0 9.54 3 0 0
B747F 3 3 0 0 12.53 0 0 0
B757F 4 4 0 0 18.35 0 0 0
B777F 5 3 2 0 0.69 3 0 0
9 1 0 8 3.63 0 2 0
540 237 155 148 6.08 66 38 38
334 6.04
40 22

2014
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2014 2013 17.59 9,438
2013 14.08 5,181
2013 6.28 1.2301 2014 2013 1.69
54.89
2014 2013 14.33 9,263
12.74 8,062 2013
349 69
2014 12 31 12,984 2,709
1992
2010 812,500,000
51
2014 12 31 160 5.58
20
2014 12 31 182
194 80
87
2014 12.53 47,875
11.36 38,688
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5.65 0.2942 1.89

78.26

2014 5.79 22,891
5.96 22,273

13.49 780

2014 12 31 42,397 4,324
1994 442,042,000
66.9
2014 12 31 16 11.16 2014
2014 12 31 23 17
16 22
2014 16.53 17.03
5,162 3,521 2.1211
16.17 0.29 68.20
17.84
17.25 80.9511 23.9882 2014
18.08 15,900
0.15 29.63
2014 0.86 2,653
3.85 2,642 51.18 106

2014 12 31 2,908 1,453
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2014
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2014
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64.26
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2014 12 31

40,802

185 2014
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1.25

11,570
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@
2014 12 31 CNAHC 53.37
®)
@
2014 12 31
21 22 23
2014 12 31 26,206 42,347
2014 2013
6,451 6,501 (50)
1,922 1,911 11
1,435 1,462 Q@7
2,056 4,000 (1,944)
2,274 2,309 (35)
3,239 1,397 1,842
3,656 4,071 (415)
2,878 2,896 (18)
IT 377 361 16
1,918 922 996
26,206 25,830 376

287 2014
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2013 12.67 27,616
2013 10.12 19,438 2013 6.87 83.01
7.85 105,884 16.97 3,817
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IFRS
2014
3,144 76.34 7,262
16.97 16.95 3,817 0.31
2014 105,884 2013 7,704
7.85 101,385 2013
6,782 7.17 4,499
2013 922
25.76
2014 2013
68,003,280 64.22% 64,386,657 65.58% 5.62%
6,186,245 5.84% 5,491,532 5.59% 12.65%
11,304,062 10.68% 10,152,698 10.34% 11.34%
9,339,397 8.82% 7,929,394 8.08% 17.78%
5,452,765 5.15% 5,023,165 5.12% 8.55%
5,598,573 5.29% 5,197,344 5.29% 7.72%

105,884,322 100.00% 98,180,790 100.00% 7.85%
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B
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@ BE-BE
o FTIT7-AFERLEEUTOMR
2014 92,599 2013 5,872
1,918
1,074 8,864
2014
2014 2013
193,631.46 175,676.68 10.22%
79.89 80.81 (0.93 ppts)
RMB 0.60 0.61 (2.01%)
2014 2013
61,672,170 66.60% 59,178,621 68.23% 4.21%
5,828,565 6.29% 5,190,785 5.99% 12.29%
7,640,985 8.25% 6,986,898 8.06% 9.36%
7,490,522 8.09% 6,360,792 7.33% 17.76%
4,876,735 5.27% 4,411,101 5.09% 10.56%
5,090,340 5.50% 4,598,602 5.30% 10.69%

92,599,317 100.00% 86,726,799 100.00% 6.77%
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2014 2013 910 8,786
1,350
288 152
2014
2014 2013
10,147.93 8,663.97 17.13%
56.08 57.89  (1.81 ppts)
RMB 1.54 1.57 (1.70%)
2014 2013
2,032,015 23.13% 1,794,941 22.79% 13.21%
353,618 4.02% 297,469 3.78% 18.88%
3,602,942 41.01% 3,113,800 39.53% 15.71%
1,789,924 20.37% 1,520,426 19.30% 17.73%
541,965 6.17% 584,105 7.42% (7.21%)
465,418 5.30% 565,628 7.18% (17.72%)

8,785,882 100.00% 7,876,369 100.00% 11.55%
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2014 2013 94,063 4.85 98,623
2014 2013
34,542,440 35.02% 33,722,281 35.85% 2.43%
10,566,490 10.71% 9,585,090 10.19% 10.24%
11,322,989 11.48% 10,936,619 11.63% 3.53%
3,587,507 3.64% 3,063,647 3.26% 17.10%
15,512,764 15.73% 14,023,639 14.91% 10.62%
2,755,640 2.79% 2,571,550 2.73% 7.16%
5,899,633 5.98% 5,760,403 6.12% 2.42%
568,136 0.58% 1,221,429 1.30% (53.49%)
13,867,076 14.07% 13,178,068 14.01% 5.23%
98,622,675 100.00% 94,062,726 100.00% 4.85%
2014 2013 820 2.43
2013 981
2014
2013 524
17.10
1,489

184
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254
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2014

2013

5.23

2,940
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2014 12 31 2013 12 31 2.06 209,311
21,053 10.06 188,258
89.94
9,660 45.88 2014
34.56 2009
2014
148,180 78.71
2013 11.58
2014 12 31
98,674 2013 12 31 85,307
37 2013 12 31 38
75 2013 12 31 746
2014 15,220
13,155
2,065

IT
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2014 12 31 2014 18.39 11,894
2014
9,889 992 609
2014 2,717 352 288
2014 12 31 2014 8.45 1,393
2014 12 31 1.81 150,201
60,843 89,358
40.51 59.49
2014 21.14 34,194
2013 0.24 26,649
2014 17.62 80,263
2014 2013
83,334,291 72.81% 78,197,358 70.07% 6.57%
30,163,637 26.35% 33,238,571 29.78% (9.25%)
959,705 0.84% 164,725 0.15% 482.61%

114,457,633 100.00% 111,600,654 100.00% 2.56%
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2014 12 31 104,516
2014 12 31
2013 34.69 35,332
2014 12 31 2013 12 31 56 1,453
41
71.76
71.94 0.18
39,790
4,467
2013 12 31 0.37
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2014
2013 14,608 3.73
14,064
2013 20,638 50.03 10,313
2013
8,859
2013 9,271 18,130
2014 2013
110,396 32,355

2001

2011 11 30

2014
42
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2014 12 31
13,084,751,004 13,084,751 ,004
2014 12 31
( 8,522,067 ,640
( 4,562,683,364
13,084,751,004
O 1.00
@)
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12,891,954,673

2010 12 31 12,891,954,673 260,031
12,891,954,673

2011 12 31 12,891,954,673 260,031
12,891,954,673

2012 12 31 12,891,954,673 260,031
192,796,331

192,796,331 3,889
13,084,751,004

2013 12 31 13,084,751,004 263,919
ot4 12 31 13,084, 751, 004 13,084,751,004

263,919
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2014 12 31
CNAHC 5,427,546,003 () 41.48
2,633,725,455 () 20.13
CNACG 1,556,334,920 ( ) 10.18
C )
C )
C )
« ) 1,332,482,920 223,852,000
2014 12 31

CNAHC CNACG 100 CNACG

1,332,482,920 223,852,000

2014 12 31

HK 100
48.83 60.91
45.00
HK
2,633,725,455
2014 12 31
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683 13,084,751,004 10 0.5223
@
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
11.42 9.60 6.73 7.41 6.69
182.26 153.22 107.41 118.26 106.77
5.79 4.83 4.40 4.87 4.20
92.41 77.09 70.22 77.73 67.03
¢
2014 2014 2014 2014 10 2014 11 2014 12
4.80 5.05 5.18 5.05 5.95 6.59
76.61 80.60 82.67 80.60 94.96 105.18
4.51 4.77 4.91 4.56 5.06 5.71
71.98 76.13 78.36 72.78 80.76 91.13
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50 2013 10 29
48 2013 10 29
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2013 2014
11,440,000 0 12,388,000 450,000
(230,744,800 ) © ) (249,865,960 ) (9,076,500 )
5,986,609 0 641,317 77,058
(120,749,904 ) © ) (129,356,604 ) (1,554,260 )
17,426,609 0 18,801,317 527,058
(351,494,704 ) © ) (379,222,564 ) (10,630,760 )
2013
2014 527,058
CNAHC
E&Y E&Y
2012 KPMG KPMG
2013 2013
2012 KPMG KPMG
2014 12 31
2013
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10

14

2014 2013
101,385,199 2,044,939 94,603,168 1,908,146
4,499,123 90,747 3,577,622 72,161
105,884,322 2,135,687 98,180,790 1,980,307

(34,542,440)

(696,721) (33,722,281)  (680,178)

(10,566,490)  (213,126) (9,585,090)  (193,331)
(11,322,989)  (228,385) (10,936,619)  (220,592)
(3,587,507)  (72,360) (3,063,647) (61,794)
(15,512,764)  (312,892) (14,023,639)  (282,857)
(2,755,640)  (55,581) (2,571,550) (51,868)
(4,536,641)  (91,504) (4,006,096) (80,803)
(940,651)  (18,973)  (914,759) (18,451)
(8,389,784)  (169,222) (8,257,213)  (166,548)
(5.899,633)  (118,996) (5,760,403)  (116,187)
(568,136)  (11,459) (1,221,429) (24,636)
(98,622,675) (1,989,219) (94,062,726) (1,897,245)
7,261,647 146,467 4,118,064 83,061
230,088 4,641 2,265,331 45,692
(3,300,723)  (66,576) (2,688,089) (54,219)
753,658 15,201 646,815 13,046
120,191 2,424 175,972 3,549
5,064,861 102,158 4,518,093 91,130
(779,854)  (15,730)  (903,132) (18,216)
4,285,007 86,429 3,614,961 72,914
3,817,469 76,998 3,263,642 65,828
467,538 9,430 351,319 7,086
4,285,007 86,429 3,614,961 72,914
31.05 26.55
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4,285,007 86,429 3,614,961 72,914
(75,943) (1,532) 241,958 4,880
(3,025,321) (61,021) 884,117 17,833
31,390 633 - -
] 82,107 1,656 (698,195) (14,083)
15 (2,987,767) (60,263) 427,880 8,630
1,297,240 26,165 4,042,841 81,544
- 815,140 16,441 3,707,418 74,779
) 482,100 9,724 335,423 6,765

1,297,240 26,165 4,042,841 81,544
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16 148,179,827 2,988,787 132,805,844 2,678,694
17 2,633,658 53,121 2,203,377 44,442
18 683,655 13,789 246,291 4,968
19 36,859 743 54,524 1,100
20 1,099,975 22,186 1,099,975 22,186
22 11,893,859 239,899 14,574,190 293,961
23 1,392,728 28,091 1,284,232 25,903
18,148,989 366,065 23,261,879 469,192
523,338 10,556 426,375 8,600
24 88,179 1,779 45,925 926
25 3,576,594 72,140 3,263,246 65,820
188,257,661 3,797,157 179,265,858 3,615,792
26 460,028 9,279 997,666 20,123
27 1,100,179 22,191 1,044,617 21,070
28 2,834,130 57,164 2,861,167 57,710
155 3 131 3
29 4,250,376 85,730 3,918,465 79,035
30 12,534 253 11,350 229
150,079 3,027 239,417 4,829
31 74,570 1,504 745,847 15,044
31 9,659,987 194,842 14,761,830 297,746
2,510,998 50,647 1,236,939 24,949
21,053,036 424,640 25,817,429 520,738

209,310,697 4,221,797 205,083,287 4,136,530
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Song Zhiyong

2015

26
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2014 2013
(4,830, 806) (97,437)  (4,461,448) (89,987)
32 (9,788,921) (197,443)  (10,349,535) (208,750)
(150,000) (3,026) - -
33 (10,535,972) (212,511)  (10,785,877) (217,551)
30 (7,712) (156) (24,070) (485)
(21,377) (431) (36,729) (741)
(607,378) (12,251) (355,617) (7,173)
34 (4,751,714) (95,842)  (3,859,317) (77,842)
35 (29,292,425) (590,828) (39 502,216) (796,760)
36 (856,789) (17,281) (699,378) (14,106)
(60,843,094)  (1,227,205) (70,074,187)  (1,413,396)
(39,790, 058) (802,565)  (44,256,758) (892,659)
148,467,603 2,994,592 135,009,100 2,723,134
34 (31,240,298) (630,117)  (25,972,715) (523,870)
35 (49,023,196) (988,798)  (42,266,406) (852,513)
36 (3.363,176) (67,835)  (3,283,480) (66,228)
(19,210) (387) (35,331) (713)
37 (38, 855) (784) (93,072) (1,877)
38 (3.336,106) (67,289)  (3,797,501) (76,596)
25 (2,336,862) (47,135)  (2,014,407) (40,631)
(89,357,703)  (1,802,345)  (77,462,912)  (1,562,427)
59,109,900 1,192,247 57,546,188 1,160,707
39 13,084,751 263,919 13,084,751 263,919
39 (3,047,564) (61,469)  (3,047,564) (61,469)
43,941,101 886,292 43,720,198 881,836
53,978,288 1,088,742 53,757,385 1,084,286
5,131,612 103,505 3,788,803 76,420
59,109,900 1,192,247 57,546,188 1,160,707

Fan Cheng
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2014 12 31
2014 2013

16 102,138,037 2,060,124 97,020,607 1,956,906

17 1,576,050 31,789 1,554,115 31,347

19 12,842 259 30,507 615

21 19,643,911 396,218 17,971,735 362,490

22 766,148 15,453 766,148 15,453

23 951,879 19,199 865,479 17,457

13,275,785 267,773 15,560,292 313,851

349,500 7,049 260,921 5,263

1,020,000 20,573 - -

24 22,110 446 22,110 446

25 2,101,472 42,387 2,206,620 44,508

141,857,734 2,861,270 136,258,534 2,748,335

26 460,028 9,279 580,881 11,716

27 633,178 12,771 619,845 12,502

28 1,883,131 37,983 3,192,939 64,402

29 3,514,733 70,892 3,363,109 67,834

150,079 3,027 239,348 4,828

31 - - 663,317 13,379

31 3,258,265 65,719 5,924,189 119,491

1,895,153 38,225 1,022,022 20,614

11,794,567 237,896 15,605,650 314,766

153,652,301 3,099,167 151,864,184 3,063,101
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2014 12 31
2014 2013
(3,917,724) (79,020) (3,700,228) (74,634)
32 (7,189,711) (145,016) (7,631,767) (153,933)
33 (6,515,213) (131,412)  (5,114,462) (103,159)
30 - - (3,819) an
(21,377) (431) (36,729) (741)
(574,177) (11,581) (144,526) (2,915)
34 (3,972,048) (80,116) (3,556,549) (71,736)
35 (18,542,372) (374,000) (25,306,051) (510,423)
36 (407,775) (8,225) (358,399) (7,229)
(41,140,397) (829,802) (45,852,530) (924,846)
(29,345,830) (591,905) (30,246,880) (610,080)
112,511,904 2,269,365 106,011,654 2,138,255
34 (23,895,151) (481,965) (23,444,512) (472,876)
35 (33,612,658) (677,967)  (29,937,026) (603,830)
36 (1,757,510) (35,449) (1,656,739) (33,416)
(18,751) (378) (34,942) (705)
38 (2,798,912) (56,454) (2,650,844) (53,468)
o5 (130,177) (2,626) (244,745) (4,937)
(62,213,159)  (1,254,839) (57,968,808) (1,169,231)
50,298,745 1,014,526 48,042,846 969,024
39 13,084,751 263,919 13,084,751 263,919
39 37,213,994 750,606 34,958,095 705,105
50,298,745 1,014,526 48,042,846 969,024
2015 26
Song Zhiyong Fan Cheng
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2013

12,891,955 260,031 (2,896,092) (58,414) 18,777,048 378,733 4,572,881 92,235 (3,045,439) (61,427) 18,867,317 380,554 776,580 15,664 49,944,250 1,007,376 3,367,991 67,932 53,312,24
2013
- - - - - 3,263,642 65,828 - 3,263,642 65,828 351,319 7,086 3,614,096
/
() - - 1,126,075 22,713 - (682,299) (13,762) - - 443,776 8,951 (15,896) (321) 427,86
/
(
)
- - 1,126,075 22,713 - (682,299) (13,762) 3,263,642 65,828 - 3,707,418 74,779 335,423 6,765 4,042,84
192,796 3,889 - 851,653 17,178 - - - - 1,044,449 21,067 - 1,044, 44
- (151,472) (3,055) - - - - - (151,472)  (3,055) - (151,472
- - - - - - - - 200,000 4,034 200,00
- - - 248,011 5,002 - (248,011) (5,002) - - -
- - - 412,353 8,317 - (423,033) (8,533) - (10,680)  (215) (1,013) (20) (11,69
- - - - - - - - (113,598) (2,291) (113,59
- - - - - - (776,580) (15,664) (776,580) (15,664) - (776,580
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- - - - - (592,870) (11,958) 592,870 11,958 - -

2013
12
31

2014

13,084,751 263,919 (3,047,564) (61,469) 20,754,776 418,624 5,233,245 105,555 (3,727,738) (75,188) 20,867,045 420,888 592,870 11,958 53,757,385 1,084,286 3,788,803 76,420 57,546,18

2014
- - - - - 3,817,469 76,998 - 3,817,469 76,998 467,538 9,430 4,285,0C
/
() - - (3,084,824) (62,221) - 82,495 1,664 - - (3,002,329) (60,557) 14,562 294 (2,987,767
/
(
)
- - (3,084,824) (62,221) - 82,495 1,664 3,817,469 76,998 - 815,140 16,441 482,100 9,724 1,297,24

- - - - - - - - 980,000 19,767 980, 0C

- - - 285,331 5,755 - (285,331) (5,755) - - -

- - - 248,011 5,002 - (249,378) (5,030) - (1,367) (28) (1,274) (26) (2,641

- - - - - - - - (118,017) (2,380) (118,017

_ - - - - - (592,870) (11,958) (592,870) (11,958) - (592,87C
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- - - - - 683,417 13,785 (683,417) (13,785) - -

13,084,751 263,919 (3,047,564) (61,469) 17,669,952 356 403 5,766,587 116,312 (3,645,243) (73, 525) 24,833,222 500, 886 (683,417) (13,785) 53,978,288 1,088,742 5,131,612 103,505 59,109,9C
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2014 12 31
2014 2013

31(b) 18,052,301 364,115 18,001,555 363,001
(529,450) (10,679)  (565,439) (11,405)
(3,458,903) (69,766)  (2,827,786) (57,036)
14,063,948 283,670 14,608,330 294,650

(18,514,371)  (373,435) (17,914,726)  (361,340)

- - (49) o

- - (18) ©)
(429,315) (8,659)  (138,763) (2,799)
5,112,890 103,127  (4,564,895) (92,074)
281,909 5,686 675,922 13,633
865,518 17,457 590,337 11,907
17,665 356 4,710 95
(10,342) (209) (81,008) (1,634)
672,172 13,558 54,997 1,109
288,424 5,818 247,575 4,994
980,000 19,767 200,000 4,034
(400) ) (10,403) (210)
422,692 8,526 298,250 6,016

(10,313,158)  (208,016) (20,638,071)  (416,270)

- 1,044,449 21,067
39,092,053 788,487 35,070,880 707,380
1,834,120 36,994 10,700,000 215,819

(40,862,478)  (824,196) (31,475,329)  (634,857)
(4,511,974) (91,007) (3,679,115) (74,208)
(3,700,000) (74,629)  (1,500,000) (30, 255)

(710,887) (14,339)  (890,178) (17,955)

(8,859,166)  (178,689) 9,270,707 186,990

« ) (5,108,376)  (103,036) 3,240,966 65,370
11 31(a) 14,761,830 297,746 11,787,943 237,763
6,533 132 (267,079) (5,387)

12 31 31(a) 9,659,987 194,842 14,761,830 297,746
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10 50 1.90 10
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4,
@
()
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
CAS ) IFRS
2014 12 31
104,651,713 173,970 - 104,825,683
- 2,213,054 (2,213,054) -
CAS 104,651,713 2,387,024 (2,213,054) 104,825,683
(188,016)
1,157,998
IFRS CAS 88,657
IFRS 105,884,322
CAS 4,940,011 78,075 - 5,018,086
IFRS CAS 46,775
IFRS 5,064,861
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2013 12

CAS

CAS

31
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97,498,291

129,962 - 97,628,253
2,008,008 (2,008,008) -

97,498,291

2,137,970 (2,008,008) 97,628,253

4,413,935

(308,512)
772,392
88,657

98,180,790

169,453 - 4,583,388
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2014

IFRS
IFRS

2013

IFRS
IFRS

CAS

IFRS
IFRS

2013

IFRS
IFRS

12 31

CAS

12 31

CAS

CAS

12 31

CAS
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2014 12 31 2013 12 31 CAS
IFRS

206,322,496 4,243,977 (923,604) 209,642,869
(332,172)
209,310, 697

CAS
202,124,315 4,365,913 (1,128,345) 205,361,883
(278,596)
205,083,287

2014 12 31

150,552,686 542,163 (923,604) 150,171,245
29,552
150,200,797

CAS
147,507,445 1,039,790 (1,128,345) 147,418,890
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2014 12 31 IFRS CAS IFRS
701,060 172,789 - 873,849 - 873,849
(131,591) 1,840 - (129,751) 40,193 (89,558)
11,596,312 16,390 - 11,612,702 (223,328) 11,389,374
210,633 11,984 (3,407) 219,210 10,878 230,088
3,463,882 (350) (3,407) 3,460,125 (159,402) 3,300,723
751,416 16,744 - 768,160 11,694 779,854
11,455,632 1,912,373 - 13,368,005 (81,418) 13,286,587
31,196,654 14,413 - 31,211,067 - 31,211,067
2013 12 31 IFRS CAS IFRS
605,881 216,906 - 822,787 - 822,787
490,714 47 - 490,761 107,927 598,688
11,113,873 13,884 - 11,127,757 (104,531) 11,023,226
2,245,239 15,835 - 2,261,074 4,257 2,265,331
3,035,034 2,801 - 3,037,835 (349,746) 2,688,089
897,222 16,234 - 913,456 (10,324) 903,132
14,123,664 1,816,176 - 15,939,840 (81,418) 15,858,422
31,605,706 23,886 - 31,629,592 - 31,629,592
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2013 12 31 IFRS
/
/
/
68,003,280 6,186,245 11,304,062 9,339,397 5,452,765 5,598,573 105,884,322
/
/
/
64,386,657 5,491,532 10,152,698 7,929,394 5,023,165 5,197,344 98,180,790
10 2013
2014 2013
92,599,317 86,726,799
8,785,882 7,876,369
101,385,199 94,603,168
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2014 2013
113,863 93,610
930,733 765,613
149,601 121,377
999,052 689,105
871,254 744,767
124,399 101,688

40,429 28,970
133,936 131,913
11,780 17,111
36,828 34,422

1,087,248 849,046

4,499,123 3,577,622

2014 2013

13,903,544 12,569,478

1,611,377 1,446,155
(13,992) 579

11,835 7,427

15,512,764 14,023,639
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2014 2013
11,322,989 10,936,619
54,075 54,222
12,310 32,385
35,105 222,438
361,892 332,014
1,740 19,748
2,675 17,929
(490,970) 6,559
39,510 140,141
4,536,641 4,006,096
866,533 728,925
18,801 16,440

527 -
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2014 2013
- 1,937,887
219,210 323,188
10,878 4,256
230,088 2,265,331

2014 2013
2,902,509 2,804,229
503,376 383,787
371 1,646
360,290 -
3,766,546 3,189,662
(465,823) (501,573)
3,300,723 2,688,089

0.77 6.55 2013 0.81 8.46
@

2014 2013
- 774,564 842,656
- 13,339 29,214
- (6,692) (8,178)
25 (1,357) 39,440
779,854 903,132

15 (2013
15 ) 2013 2015
25 2013 25
16.5 12 2013 16.5 12
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(b)
2014 2013

5,064,861 4,518,093
1,266,215 1,129,523
(66,149) (79,531)
(218,462) (205,697)
23,313 24,474
(83,675) (49,791)
64,296 228,275
(3,156) (4,440)
(73,207) (121,904)
- (15,599)
(122,629) -
(6,692) (8,178)
- 6,000
779,854 903,132

15.4 20.0
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0000000
11.
622 11 78 32 161
2014 12 31
SAR
40
(2014 22 )
1 - 574 157 81 . 812
- 292 565 82 . 939
— 866 722 163 - 1,751
2014 28 - 28 433 7 - 468
2014 27 - - - - - -
2014 26 111 387 32 - 530
2014 22 - - - - - -
2014 10 - - - - - -
2014 14 - - - - - -
- 139 820 39 . 998
131 - - - - 131
131 - - - - 131
131 - - - - 131
393 — — - - 393
- 359 118 59 . 536
- 183 33 43 . 259
- 542 151 102 - 795
393 1,547 1,603 304 - 3,937
Q@ 2014 12 31
Q@ SAR 40
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(2013 10 29
(2013 10
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(2013 10

(2013 10

(2013 10
(2013 10

(2013 10 29

(@ 2014 12 31

Q@
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29

29

29
29
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SAR
39
- 348 603 85 - 1,036
- 287 606 79 - 972
- 635 1,209 164 - 2,008
83 - - - - 83
100 - - - - 100
83 - - - - 83
100 - - - - 100
17 - - - - 17
17 - - - - 17
400 - - - - 400
- 338 109 56 - 503
- 203 56 41 - 300
- 29 5 7 - 41
- 570 170 104 - 844
400 1,205 1,379 268 - 3,252
SAR 40
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12.
11 2014
2013 2013

2014 2013
11,166 11,379
181 305
11,347 11,684

2013

2014 2013
2,500,001 3,000,000 5 3
3,000,001 3,500,000 - 2

5
2013
13.
2014 2,848,769,000
2013 2,191,536,000 39(a)

2014 2013
2,514,291 1,887,666
334,478 303,870
39(a) 2,848,769 2,191,536

39(d)
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15.

2014 12 31

2013
12,294,896,740

1
1
3,264
2013 12,294,184,525

2014 2013 12
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16.
2013 169,528,062 7,082,182 2,857,438 2,099,460 1,369,716 7,280,987 190,217,845
2,483,315 6,918 101,646 46,047 115,026 19,668,734 22,421,686
17,179,615 521,300 582,144 46,573 109,466 (18,439,098) -
(8,501,157) - - - - - (8,501,157)
(5,297,468)  (160,354) (69,973) (94,377) (42,400) - (5,664,572)
(17,229) - (715) 940 (3,080) - (20,084)
2013 12 31 2014
175,375,138 7,450,046 3,470,540 2,098,643 1,548,728 8,510,623 198,453,718
5,059,235 1,913 264,227 39,270 42,013 22,581,995 27,988,653
21,517,066 760,860 324,402 60,882 129,864 (22,793,074) -
(3,244,361) - - - - - (3,244,361)
(4,915,679) (64,092) (25,632) (46,266) (32,752) - (5,084,421)
15,800 - 414 260 1,188 - 17,662
2014 12 31 193,807,199 8,148,727 4,033,951 2,152,789 1,689,041 8,299,544 218,131,251
2013 1 1 (58,248,623) (2,137,323) (1,252,210) (1,219,035)  (900,087) - (63,757,278)
6,254,560 - - - - - 6,254,560
(10,021,662)  (273,849)  (229,905)  (177,094)  (234,109) - (10,936,619)
4,201,379 43,395 60,563 83,735 42,879 - 4,431,951
13,460 - 685 423 1,182 - 15,750
2013 12 31 2014 1 1
(57,800,886) (2,367,777) (1,420,867) (1,311,971) (1,090,135) - (63,991,636)
2,397,931 - - - - - 2,397,931
(10,406,010)  (258,252)  (309,160)  (173,098)  (176,469) - (11,322,989)
3,753,363 26,613 21,452 40,314 32,351 - 3,874,093
(8,389) - (395) (160) (803) - 9,747)
2014 12 31 (62,063,991) (2,599,416) (1,708,970) (1,444,915) (1,235,056) - (69,052,348)
2013 1 1 (2,980,829) - - - - - (2,980,829)
916,917 - - - - - 916,917
(222,438) - - - - - (222,438)
630,112 - - - - - 630,112
2013 12 31 2014 1
1 (1,656,238) - - - - - (1,656,238)
151,085 - - - - - 151,085
(35,105) - - - - - (35,105)
641,182 - - - - - 641,182
2014 12 31 (899,076) - - - - - (899,076)
2014 12 31 130,844,132 5,549,311 2,324,981 707,874 453,985 8,299,544 148,179,827
2013 12 31 115,918,014 5,082,269 2,049,673 786,672 458,593 8,510,623 132,805,844
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2013

2014

2013

2013

2014

2013

2013

2014

2014

2013

12 31 2014

12 31

12 31 2014 1 1

12 31

12 31 2014 1

12 31

12 31

12 31

2014 12 31

35(a)
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133,723,083 5,323,140 1,753,306 1,505,409 1,172,716 4,457,198 147,934,852
318,200 490 122 10,038 18,097 15,601,380 15,948,327
14,126,850 507,420 567,841 46,152 78,463 (15,326,726) -
(7,432,675) - - - - - (7,432,675)
(5,374,369) (26,973) (58,026) (19,522) (32,646) - (5,511,536)
135,361,089 5,804,077 2,263,243 1,542,077 1,236,630 4,731,852 150,938,968
414,292 - 13,785 5,332 29,266 14,926,127 15,388,802
13,601,107 364,776 249,793 60,587 101,118 (14,467,381) -
(3,244,361) - - - - - (3,244,361)
(3,954,615) (77,227) (10,972) (36,130) (27,674) - (4,106,618)
(2,579,526) (48,997) (7,079) (35,450) (10,914) - (2,681,966)
139,687,986 6,042,629 2,508,770 1,536,416 1,328,426 5,190,598 156,294,825
(50,420,462) (1,705,181)  (688,328)  (822,897)  (781,132) - (54,418,000)
5,792,690 - - - - - 5,792,690
(7,715,671)  (218,783)  (132,444)  (125,476)  (150,679) - (8,343,053)
4,486,730 12,032 48,114 19,184 30,238 - 4,596,298
(47,856,713) (1,911,932)  (772,658)  (929,189)  (901,573) - (52,372,065)
2,397,931 - - - - - 2,397,931
(7,737,747)  (203,037)  (166,238)  (123,216)  (134,307) - (8,364,545)
2,868,307 24,430 9,334 32,437 27,397 - 2,961,905
1,814,952 29,218 5,024 22,722 8,555 - 1,880,471
(48,513,270) (2,061,321)  (924,538)  (997,246)  (999,928) - (53,496,303)
(2.,427,202) - - - - - (2.427,202)
727,090 - - - - - 727,090
(222,438) - - - - - (222,438)
376,254 - - - - - 376,254
(1,546,296) - - - - - (1,546,296)
151,085 - - - - - 151,085
613,831 - - - - - 613,831
120,895 - - - - - 120,895
(660,485) - - - - - (660,485)
90,514,231 3,981,308 1,584,232 539,170 328,498 5,190,598 102,138,037
85,958,080 3,892,145 1,490,585 612,888 335,057 4,731,852 97,020,607
35 2013 222
40,001 2013 36,906
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58,673 2013 48,401 48,275
2013 45,142 ( 3%
2013 12 31 1,965 2013 2,103
2014 12 31
17.
2014 2013 2014 2013
11 2,611,034 2,474,210 1,846,624 1,791,173
484,499 138,763 103,856 57,390
(32,093) (1,939) (55,789) (1,939)
12 31 3,063,440 2,611,034 1,894,691 1,846,624
11 (407,657) (353,715) (292,509) (253,526)
(54,075) (54,222) (37,330) (39,263)
31,950 280 11,198 280
12 31 (429,782) (407,657) (318,641) (292,509)
12 31 2,633,658 2,203,377 1,576,050 1,554,115
2014 12 31 37 2013 38
35(a)
2014 12 31 604 (2013 555
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OooooOodd
18.
2014 2013
387,466 338,614
449,674 48,852
12 31 837,140 387,466
(141,175) (108,790)
(12,310) (32,385)
12 31 (153,485) (141,175)
12 31 683,655 246,291
2014 12 31 40 2013
41
19.
2014 2013 2014 2013
11 54,524 59,216 30,507 35,217
- 18 - -
(17,665) (4,710) (17,665) (4,710)
12 31 36,859 54,524 12,842 30,507
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2011

10

2014 12 31

2013

2013 12 31
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2014 2013
1,276,866 1,276,866
(176,891) (176,891)
1,099,975 1,099,975
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21.
2014 2013
19,643,911 17,971,735
2014 12 31
)
331,268,000
( CNAC ) ) 69 31
95,080,786
AIE 100 -
20,000,000
100 -
2,000,000
100 -
9,379,010
95 -
2,000,000
100 -
13,765,440,000
99.94 0.06
442,042,000
- 67
5,235,294,118
51 -
37,565,216
60 -
812,500,000
51 -
20,000,000
- 100
80,000,000
- 80
1,000,000, 000
51 -
1,000,000, 000
80 -
( 1,000,000,000
) 80 -
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2014 12 31
2014 12 31
NCI
2014 2013
NCI 49 49% 49 49
3,242,187 2,158,168 2,951,611 2,183,731
40,722,584 10,936,980 36,379,227 8,175,604
(18,126,461) (3,565,665)  (17,302,682) (8,265,177)
(21,338,885) (6,709,104)  (18,074,771) (1,341,685)
- 4,457,500 2,820,379 3,914,480 752,473
- NCI 41,925 - 38,905 -
NCI 2,226,100 1,381,986 1,957,000 368,712
22,891,427 9,263,321 21,637,583 8,102,114
( 747,810 67,789 888,166 (348,416)
779,220 67,906 888,046 (349,412)
NCI
381,818 33,274 435,142 (171,212)
NCI - 980,000 - -
NCI (115,738) - (112,602) -
3,540,033 (1,083,733) 3,381,728 426,018
(1,532,503) (960, 831) (3,031,803) (4,761,236)
(2,011,338) 1,962,257 (742,895) 4,629,667

140/304



EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)

ooOoooOoo
22.
2014 2013 2014 2013
- - 163,477 163,477
- - 602,671 602,671
- 542,058 512,031 - -
- 7,186,996 9,929,488 - -
- 1,297,295 1,265,161 - -
2,914,352 2,914,352 - -
11,940,701 14,621,032 766,148 766,148
46,842 46,842 - _
12 31 11,893,859 14,574,190 766,148 766,148
16,858,414 16,363,884 1,129,968 1,151,856
2014 12 31
/ /
* 787,139,514
29.99
580,000,000
49.4
400,000,000
22.8
e 505,269,500
23.5
10,000,000
41
10,000,000
40
CAAC 14,800,000
24.5
CAAC 10,000,000
35
* 150,000,000
30
280,000,000
31
**  CNAF 19.3 4.2
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2014 12 31
2014 2013
26,401,111 30,808,422
109,264,017 104,088,990
(36,099,479) (32,060, 100)
(58,660,373) (53,294,601)
40,905,276 49,542,711
40,801,934 49,444,432
103,342 98,279
83,473,212 80,240,493
2,717,048 2,318,960
(10,471, 265) 3,832,992
(7,754,217) 6,151,952
241,976 129,859
40,801,934 49,444,432
29.99 29.99
12,236,500 14,828,385
(5,049,504) (4,898,897)
2,701,567 2,701,567
9,888,563 12,631,055
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2014 2013
2,005,296 1,943,135
- 164,107 223,737
- ¢ D 27,141 (1,174)
- 191,248 222,563
23.
2014 2013 2014 2013
- - 951,879 865,479
1,386,218 1,277,722 - -
6,510 6,510 - -
1,392,728 1,284,232 951,879 865,479
2014 12 31
/
)
Ameco 187,533,000
60 57.1 60
30
33.3 33.3 33.3
500,000
ACT USA 51 55.6 51
680,000,000
39 28.6 39
GA 10,000,000
50 50 50
71,900,000
60 60 60
360,000,000
24 24 24
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2014 2013
1,392,728 1,284,232
120,191 175,972
118 (1,003)
120,309 174,969
2014 2013 2014 2013
36,725 36,325 22,110 22,110
51,454 9,600 - -
88,179 45,925 22,110 22,110
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25.
10
12 31
10
12 31
12 31

2014 2013 2014 2013
3,263,246 2,849,703 2,206,620 2,024,156
313,348 413,543 (105,148) 182,464
3,576,594 3,263,246 2,101,472 2,206,620
2,014,407 1,561,424 244,745 210,441
311,991 452,983 (114,568) 34,304
10,464 - - -
2,336,862 2,014,407 130,177 244,745
1,239,732 1,248,839 1,971,295 1,961,875
2014 2013 2014 2013
84,629 74,159 84,629 74,159
2,542,263 2,180,112 1,659,635 1,440,161
41,658 - - -
- 955 - 955
511,511 978,468 349,820 661,793
389,145 - - -
7,388 29,552 7,388 29,552
3,576,594 3,263,246 2,101,472 2,206,620
(29,591) (45,746) (29,591) (45,746)
(10,464) - - -
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(2,111,098)  (1,822,708) (100, 586) (198,999)
(185,709) (145,953) - -
(2.336,862)  (2,014,407) (130,177) (244,745)
1,239,732 1,248,839 1,971,295 1,961,875
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27.

2,892,757,000

361,892,000

2013
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2014 2013
2,268,480 2,253,267
624,277 687,758
2,892,757 2,941,025
2013
2,941,025,000
12
2014 2013 2014 2013
460,028 997,666 460,028 580,881
2014 12 31 361,892,000
2013 332,014,000 332,014,000
2014 2013 2014 2013
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901,512 848,828 546,514 532,317
100,665 104,750 46,839 57,507
22,354 34,206 16,843 17,647
75,648 56,833 22,982 12,374
1,100,179 1,044,617 633,178 619,845
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28.

30
31
61
90

60
90

2014 2013 2014 2013

2,903,464 2,935,838 1,937,140 3,250,979
(69,334) (74,671) (54,009) (58,040)

2,834,130 2,861,167 1,883,131 3,192,939

30 90

2014 2013 2014 2013

2,262,237 2,245,022 1,435,628 1,311,589
263,514 259,966 71,405 350,112
110,406 120,542 241,155 352,688
197,973 235,637 134,943 1,178,550

2,834,130 2,861,167 1,883,131 3,192,939

149/304
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EDINETOOOO
OO000D0O0000O0On(Es9se)

OoOooOodnd
2014 2013 2014 2013
74,671 58,899 58,040 41,978
5,892 20,820 5,482 18,241
(3,217) (2,891) (2,725) (1,603)
(8,031) (2,071) (6,788) (576)
19 (86) - -
12 31 69,334 74,671 54,009 58,040
2014 12 31 61,905,000 2013 64,382,000 46,580,000 2013
47,751,000
2014 2013 2014 2013
2,154,027 2,047,645 1,327,419 1,114,213
315,703 311,549 254,343 633,841
154,506 220,370 91,475 1,163,282
2,624,236 2,579,564 1,673,237 2,911,336

150/304
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OO000D0O0000O0On(Es9se)

OoOooOodnd
29.
2014 2013 2014 2013
394,389 295,854 257,031 194,392
1,375,606 1,414,371 1,323,429 1,407,806
449,412 384,108 302,547 200,431
2,219,407 2,094,333 1,883,007 1,802,629
2,030,969 1,824,132 1,631,726 1,560,480
4,250,376 3,918,465 3,514,733 3,363,109
2014 2013 2014 2013
2,888,567 2,888,674 822 -
273 8,904 - 822
(491,243) (2,345) - -
(822) (6.447) (822) -
15 (219) - -
12 31 2,396,790 2,888,567 - 822
2014 12 31 1,124,325,000 2013 12
31 1,520,700,000 1,075,182,000 2013 12 31 1,520,700,000 2014
445,518,000 92,853,000 2014
352,665,000

151/304



EDINETOO OO
000000000000 0(E05956)
0oooood
2014 12 31 650,819,000
2013 12 31 695,819,000 45,000,000
2014 45,000,000

152/304



30.

2014 2013
1,761 7,712 2,825 24,070
10,773 - 8,525 -
12,534 7,712 11,350 24,070
2014 2013
- - - 3,819

153/304
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OO000D0O0000O0On(Es9se)

OoOooOodnd
31.
@
2014 2013 2014 2013
4,842,264 8,945,829 2,045,000 4,601,317
() (74,570) (745,847) - (663,317)
4,767,694 8,199,982 2,045,000 3,938,000
4,892,293 6,561,848 1,213,265 1,986,189
9,659,987 14,761,830 3,258,265 5,924,189
() CNAF 2014 12 31 1,988 1,672 2013 2,126
1,926
)
20143 2013 2014 2013
57,553 66,535 - -
- 35(b) - 663,317 - 663,317
- 17,017 15,995 - -
74,570 745,847 - 663,317

154/304



EDINETOOOO
OO000D0O0000O0On(Es9se)
OoOoooooo

()

2014 2013
5,064,861 4,518,093
(873,849) (822,787)
360,290 (1,937,887)
(219,210) (323,188)
2,940,062 2,688,089
371 1,646
11,322,989 10,936,619
35,105 222,438
33,937 137,781
54,075 54,222
12,310 32,385
361,892 332,014
5,573 2,360
1,740 19,748
2,675 17,929
(490,970) 6,559
(96,963) 17,164
(57,302) 40,683
24,362 (134,993)
(24) 1,122
159,059 100,469
89,338 (16,370)
(1,274,059) (1,092,387)
369,358 584,661
636,564 970,401
150,000 (1,503)
(249,905) 849,127
(15,352) 7,759
237,107 537,682
(16,121) (11,639)
(461,395) 317,554
(54,217) (54,196)
18,052,301 18,001,555

155/304



©

10,676

2013
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30
31 60
61 90
90

33.

EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)
oOoOooodn

2014 2013 2014 2013
5,507,172 7,315,999 3,544,406 4,923,028
789,788 826,040 550,864 803,250
1,366,348 785,549 1,244,956 750,291
2,125,613 1,421,947 1,849,485 1,155,198
9,788,921 10,349,535 7,189,711 7,631,767

90

2014 2013 2014 2013
1,814,534 2,442,395 711,958 1,395,292
1,874,773 1,882,580 . .
1,308,280 1,304,706 466,934 833,452
366,242 356,032 206,508 214,658
664,490 599,758 394,872 375,279
100,000 207,787 . .
659,180 712,165 574,389 631,840
- 207,734 - -
890,322 581,455 412,732 446,955
76,588 122,218 76,588 122,218
55,414 51,698 - -
88,062 88,062 88,062 88,062
2,638,087 2,229,287 3,583,170 1,006,706
10,535,972 10,785,877 6,515,213 5,114,462

157/304



34.

EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)

OooooOodd
2016 2026 2013 2016 2025
2014 2014 2013 2013
5,311,426 4,751,714 4,228,660 3,859,317
5,304,020 4,803,263 4,328,448 3,999,168
13,108,105 11,971,446 11,764,859 11,026,088
15,200,907 14,465,589 11,421,534 10,947,459
38,924,458 35,992,012 31,743,501 29,832,032
(2,932,446) (1,911,469)
35,992,012 29,832,032
(4,751,714) (3,859,317)
31,240,298 25,972,715
58,673 2013 48,401
16
2014 12 31 135 825
2014 12 31 156 2013 124
-1.43 6.55 2013 -1.39 6.55

158/304



2013

45,142

EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)

159/304

Ogoooood

2014 2014 2013 2013

4,333,059 3,972,048 3,812,676 3,556,549

4,320,099 3,994,868 3,922,868 3,693,243
10,270,689 9,522,598 10,620,634 10,097,739
10,878,349 10,377,685 10,015,327 9,653,530
29,802,196 27,867,199 28,371,505 27,001,061
(1,934,997) (1,370,444)
27,867,199 27,001,061
(3,972,048) (3,556,549)
23,895,151 23,444,512

48,275

16



EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)
oOoOooodn

35.

43

2014 2013 2014 2013
31,278,087 26,512,690 15,595,768 12,064,165
24,488,414 30,057,932 17,559,262 21,178,912
55,766,501 56,570,622 33,155,030 33,243,077

- 90,000 - -
1,715,000 2,408,000 - -
1,715,000 2,498,000 - -

20,834,120 22,700,000 19,000,000 22,000,000
78,315,621 81,768,622 52,155,030 55,243,077
23,937,425 33,334,216 15,542,372 22,306,051
5,997,305 4,330,402 3,318,518 2,006,798
14,427,453 9,380,455 7,730,175 3,935,899
11,404,318 9,525,549 6,563,965 4,994,329
55,766,501 56,570,622 33,155,030 33,243,077
1,715,000 2,468,000 - -

- 30,000 - -
1,715,000 2,498,000 - -
3,640,000 3,700,000 3,000,000 3,000,000

- 3,000,000 - 3,000,000

10,694,120 3,500,000 9,500,000 3,500,000
6,500,000 12,500,000 6,500,000 12,500,000
20,834,120 22,700,000 19,000,000 22,000,000
78,315,621 81,768,622 52,155,030 55,243,077

(29,292,425) (39,502,216) (18,542,372) (25,306,051)

49,023,196 42,266,406 33,612,658 29,937,026

160/304
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O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)

OooooOodd
CNAF
2014 2013 2014 2013
CNAF
0.00
7.20 2013  5.04
7.20
2016 4,420,294 3,593,889 - -
5.04
6.55 2013  5.04
8.46
2023 3,871,594 5,754,136 - _
8,291,888 9,348,025 - -
) 2.40  4.96
2013 2.4 4.61
2019 2,221,482 1,451,672 1,413,102 403,859
0.77 6.09 2013
0.81  6.09
2024 46,822,254 48,104,200 31,596,051 32,674,493
49,043,736 49,555,872 33,009,153 33,078,352
) 4.38 2013
4.38
2014 145,877 164,725 145,877 164,725
CNAF 57,481,501 59,068, 622 33,155,030 33,243,077
3.48
5.60 2013 3.48
5.30
2023 20,834,120 22,700,000 19,000,000 22,000,000
78,315,621 81,768,622 52,155,030 55,243,077
2014 12 31 31,278 2013 26,603
CNAF

161/304



EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)

OooooOodd
@) 2014 12 31 40,001 2013
36,906 16 2014 12
31 37 2013 38
17
(b) 2014 12 31 2013
663 (  31@)( )
() 2014 12 31 2013
(d 2014 12 31 255 1,560
2013 12 31 86
522
2014 12 31 15,596 2013 12,064
@) 2014 12 31 19,322 2013 14,750
2014 12 31 31 2013
32
(b) 2014 12 31 2013
() 2014 12 31 265 1,623
2013 12 31 89 543
2014 12 31
2013
36.
2014 2013 2014 2013
3,982,858 3,445,176 2,015,138 1,747,287
1,306,053 1,453,951 874,536 648,347
(1,068, 946) (916,269) (724,389) (380,496)
12 31 4,219,965 3,982,858 2,165,285 2,015,138
(856,789) (699,378) (407,775) (358,399)

3,363,176 3,283,480 1,757,510 1,656,739

162/304
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EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)
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2014 2013
77,710 114,892
16,559 29,878
94,269 144,770

(55,414) (51,698)
38,855 93,072




EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)

OooooOodd
38.
2014 2013 2014 2013
2,635,316 3,010,284 2,224,541 1,973,153
631,798 705,566 574,371 677,601
55,666 64,905 - -
13,326 16,746 - -
3,336,106 3,797,501 2,798,912 2,650,844
a
2014 2013 2014 2013
11 3,591,739 2,933,432 2,420,108 1,868,966
2,041,335 1,727,556 1,745,577 1,476,108
(2,107,436) (1,069, 249) (1,528,412) (924,966)
12 31 3,525,638 3,591,739 2,637,273 2,420,108
(890,322) (581,455) (412,732) (446,955)
2,635,316 3,010,284 2,224,541 1,973,153
b
2014 2013 2014 2013
11 827,784 882,442 799,909 877,839
30,203 66,719 349 43,121
(149,601) (121,377) (149,299) (121,051)
12 31 708,386 827,784 650,959 799,909
(76,588) (122,218) (76,588) (122,218)
631,798 705,566 574,371 677,691

164/304



39.
@
2013 1 1
2013 12 31
2014 12 31
()
()
()
20,823
31

EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)

ooooOoog
12,891,955 16,803,307 4,563,291 11,324,888 45,583,441
192,796 851,653 - - 1,044,449
- . - 2,191,536 2,191,536
. - - (776,580)  (776,580)
- - 248,011 (248,011) -
- - 421,943 (421,943) -
2014 1 1 13,084,751 17,654,960 5,233,245 12,069,890 48,042,846
. - - 2,848,769 2,848,769
- - - (592,870)  (592,870)
- - 285,331 (285,331) -
- - 248,011 (248,011) -
13,084,751 17,654,960 5,766,587 13,792,447 50,298,745
10 50
CAS
25
2014 12 31 20,823 2013
5,767 2013 5,233
2014 12
13,861 2013 12 31 12,134

165/304
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O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)

oOoOooodn
©)
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
2014 2014 2013 2013
1.00
4,562,683,364 4,562,683 4,562,683,364 4,562,683
1.00
8,329,271,309 8,329,272 8,329,271,309 8,329,272
192,796,331 192,796 192,796,331 192,796
13,084,751,004 13,084,751  13,084,751,004 13,084,751
2014 12 31 2013 12 31 192,796,331 2013 30
©
2014 12 31 29.99 2013 12 31
29.99 20.13 2013 12 31 20.13
29.99
@
2014 2013
683,417 592,870
592,870 776,580
CAS
IFRS
2014 22 2013 12 31
10 0.4531 593 2014
2015 26 2014 12 31
10 0.5223 683

166/304

2014 12 31



EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)

©)
2014 2013 12 31
2014
150,200,797
209,310,697
71.76
40.
2013 23
SAR
2013 26,200,000 SAR 160
2013
SAR
SAR
SAR
30 70 100
SAR
12 31 SAR 19,262,321 2013 12 31
2014 11,834,841 2013 7,427,480

167/304

ooooood
2013
147,537,099
205,083,287
71.94
6.46
SAR
SAR
2014
7,427,480



EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)

OooooOodd
41.
2014 12 31
(a) CNAHC
2004 11 20  CNAHC « ) (CNAHC
CNACG )
CNAHC CNACG
CNAHC CNACG
CNAHC CNACG
(b) 2007 26
(c) 2011 390,000,000
130,000,000
)
2014 12 31
412,301,273 2013 12 31 475,979,454

225,987,570 2013 12 31 273,167,836

168/304



42.

@

CNAF

EDINETOOOO

O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)

169/304

2014 2013
9,659,987 14,761,830
74,570 745,847
150,079 239,417
12,534 11,350
2,834,130 2,861,167
155 131
2,847,849 2,874,967
523,338 426,375
638,289 749,147
105,968,893 95,141,050
122,709,824 117,811,281
28

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)

oOoOooodn
BSP 2014 12 31
BSP 901 2013 1,069
33 2013 37
()
2014 12 31 39,790 2013 44,257
2014 12 31 14,064
2013 14,608
10,313 2013 20,638 2014 12 31
8,859 2013
9,271 2014 2013
12 31 5,108 3,241
2014 12 31 110,396
2013 145,268 32,355
2013 43,684

2014 12 31

170/304



EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)
oOoOooodn

2014
1 1 2
2 5 5

9,788,921 - - - 9,788,921 9,788,921
150,000 - - - 150,000 150,000
21,377 - - - 21,377 21,377
7,938,936 - - - 7,938,936 7,938,936
7,712 - - - 7,712 7,712

5,311,426 5,304,020 13,108,105 15,200,907 38,924,458 35,992,012

32,617,673 9,877,238 33,065,851 24,506,869 100,067,631 78,315,621

856,789 112,830 2,295,097 955,249 4,219,965 4,219,965
55,414 - 38,855 - 94,269 94,269
638,289 - - - 638,289 638,289

57,386,537 15,294,088 48,507,908 40,663,025 161,851,558 137,167,102

2013
1 1 2
2 5 5
10,349,535 - - - 10,349,535 10,349,535
36,729 - - - 36,729 36,729
7,575,593 - - - 7,575,593 7,575,593
24,070 - - - 24,070 24,070

4,228,660 4,328,448 11,764,859 11,421,534 31,743,501 29,832,032

40,792,980 8,787,704 15,709,981 26,421,181 91,711,846 81,768,622

699,378 398,089 2,054,207 831,184 3,982,858 3,982,858
51,698 - 93,072 - 144,770 144,770
749,147 - - - 749,147 749,147

64,507,790 13,514,241 29,622,119 38,673,899 146,318,049 134,463,356

171/304



EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)
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©

2014
1 2
2 5 5
7,189,711 - - - 7,189,711 7,189,711
21,377 - - - 21,377 21,377
4,637,826 - - - 4,637,826 4,637,826
4,333,059 4,320,099 10,270,689 10,878,349 29,802,196 27,867,199
19,952,233 4,510,579 19,193,436 16,154,692 59,810,940 52,155,030
407,775 112,830 689,431 955,249 2,165,285 2,165,285
1,623,452 - - - 1,623,452 1,623,452
38,165,433 8,943,508 30,153,556 27,988,290 105,250,787 95,659,880
2013
1 2
2 5 5
7,631,767 - - - 7,631,767 7,631,767
36,729 - - - 36,729 36,729
2,418,657 - - - 2,418,657 2,418,657
3,819 - - - 3,819 3,819
3,812,676 3,922,868 10,620,634 10,015,327 28,371,505 27,001,061
26,961,674 6,225,357 9,381,819 20,964,822 63,533,672 55,243,077
358,399 381,350 444,205 831,184 2,015,138 2,015,138
542,939 - - - 542,939 542,939
41,766,660 10,529,575 20,446,658 31,811,333 104,554,226 94,893,187

172/304



EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)
oOoOooodn

2014 2013
1.61 -6.55 11,767,285 1.61 -4.79 8,836,576
0.00 -7.20 27,621,773 2.57 -7.20 27,616,521
1.35 -3.08 (4,842,264) 1.35 -3.30 (8,945,829)
34,546,794 27,507,268
(1.60 )-3.22 24,224,727 (1.57 )-6.55 20,995,456
0.77 -6.55 50,693,848 0.81 -8.46 54,152,101
0.35 (4,831,745) 0.35 (6,107,460)
70,086,830 69,040,097
104,633,624 96,547,365
33 28
2014 2013
1.61 -4.79 11,577,951 1.61 -4.79 8,836,576
2.40 -5.30 20,558,979 3.48 -5.30 22,324,707
1.35 -3.08 (2,045,000) 1.35 -3.30 (1,139,788)
30,091,930 30,021,495
(1.60 )-2.54 16,289,248 (1.57 )-2.56 18,164,485
0.86 -4.20 31,596,051 0.86 -4.20 32,918,370
0.35 (1,163,720) 0.35 (5,384,308)
46,721,579 45,698,547
76,813,509 75,720,042
39 40
1

173/304
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2014 12 31
50

2013 12 31
50

@

EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)
oOoOooodn

(262,826) (262,826)

(258, 900) (258,900)

2014 2013

241,878 181,686 7,198 199,747 202,306 5,753
1,649,823 59,824 2,412 1,929,675 43,913 -
1,403,447 90,064 1,009,588 2,456,185 136,369 1,829,219
(770,792)  (346,723)  (168,778)  (1,589,986)  (236,302)  (85,501)
(34,290,555) - - (28,641,486) - -
(49,043,736)  (145,877) - (49,555,872)  (164,725) -

(80,809,935)

(161,026) 850,420  (75,201,737)

(18,439) 1,749,471

174/304
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O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)

oOoOooodn

2014 2013
160,875 125,440 3,458 149,508 192,414 2,116
1,366,783 59,824 9,462 1,554,624 43,913 -
178,841 33,489 12,599 271,675 58,468 16,330
(621,082)  (346,721)  (163,198) (512,354)  (189,701)  (29,702)
(27,053,371) - - (23,679,144) - -
(33,009,153)  (145,877) - (33,078,352)  (164,725) -
(58,977,107)  (273,845)  (137,679) (55,294,043)  (59,631)  (11,256)
2014 12 31
466,053 466,053
1,208 1,208
(6,378) (6,378)
460,883 460,883
2013 12 31
368,461 368,461
138 138
(13,121) (13,121)
355,478 355,478

175/304
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2014 12 31

2013 12 31
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(1,727,122)

(1,727,122)

(1,686,114)

(1,686,114)
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O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)

oOoOooodn
®
()
.
°
.
2014 12 31
1,761 - 1,761 -
10,773 10,773 - -
51,454 51,454 - -
7,712 - 7,712 -
2013 12 31
2,825 - 2,825 -
8,525 8,525 - -
24,070 - 24,070 -
2014 12 31
2013
()
LIBOR
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EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)

oOoOooodn
)
2014 2013 12

2014 2013 2014 2013
102,643,481 92,775,903 70,066,725 66,968,722
910,042 1,279,595 339,322 550,376
221,815 24,726 212,169 24,726
103,775,338 94,080,224 70,618,216 67,543,824
688,957 729,588 536,646 551,722
51,292 274,899 26,305 274,899
740,249 1,004,487 562,951 826,621
104,515,587 95,084,711 71,181,167 68,370,445

2014 2013 2014 2013
1,391,055 56,339 1,356,055 21,339
62,251 - 62,251 -
1,453,306 56,339 1,418,306 21,339

178/304
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2014 2013 2014 2013
5,234,739 6,799,506 3,860,489 5,407,999
15,120,778 11,146,245 11,006,809 6,126,290
14,976,871 8,285,770 11,846,447 6,013,629
35,332,388 26,231,521 26,713,745 17,547,918

179/304
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) CNAHC

) CNAHC

CNAHC
CNAHC
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O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)
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2014 2013
14,364 15,325
71,585 85,622
420,731 379,688
2,883 2,154
13,579 15,466
28,591 31,132
45,631 62,734
246 246
1,811 1,652
599,421 594,019
3,642 3,276
779,819 709,158
764,308 603,350
11,951 216
108,977 86,913
126,308 122,275
55,059 38,171
23,797 20,899
81,637 126,923
110,853 64,863
- 13,694
694 1,016
2,067,045 1,790,754
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2014 2013
14,471 13,751
12,220 37,112
104,663 88,786
57,070 47,321
7,004 8,722
99,991 101,241
18,597 18,055
21,767 14,695
5,773 25,582
5,301 8,066
346,857 363,331
34,830 40,761
21,381 37,965
355,875 184,413
2,433,997 2,372,370
535,473 616,249
877 2,318
12,069 13,419
255,806 264,206
- 78,178
4,348 4,173
7,452 13,884
3,662,108 3,627,936
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2014 12 31 2013 12 31
()

1,987,652 2,126,326

34 2,695,000 2,498,000
(vi)

150,079 239,417

180,914 135,257

106,120 18,977

61,377 61,385

21,377 36,729

270,905 300,983

465,466 360,828

777,068 480,791
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83,409 2013 12 16 2023 12 15
85,750 2014 12 2024 11
85,750 2014 31 2024 30
66,636 2014 30 2026 30
68,126 2014 29 2026 29
86,813 2013 12 16 2023 12 15
89,250 2014 12 2024 11
89,250 2014 31 2024 30
69,355 2014 30 2026 30
70,907 2014 29 2026 29
©
2014 2013
12,435 11,009
1,145 1,022
2,444 1,450
16,024 13,481
11
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(d) 2004 8 25 CNACG CNAC

CNAHC
CNAC 2014 2013
e) CNAHC CNAHC
CNAF
CNAHC
CNAHC CNAHC
®
(M
2014 12 31
533,570,000
2009
2014 12 31 10,000,000
35,000,000
2014 12 31
2014
804,210,000
2014 12 31 804,210,000
2012
2014 12 31 1,500,000

3,500,000
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45,000,000

9,660,000
9,660,000

5,000,000



@

44(a)

EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)
oOoOooodn

2014 2013
459,346 511,560
26,329 21,185
485,675 532,745

2014 2013
43,576 203,519
493,118 508,194

CNAHC
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(a) CNAF
2014 12 24 AIE

28,065,845.88 4,726,113.94
CNAF
2014 12 24 CNAHC
CNAF
CNAHC
CNAF
AMS
(b) Ameco
2014 12 24

Ameco

EDINETOOOO
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ooooooo
2014 2013
29,732,099 28,357,794
2014 2013
1,819,154 2,704,000
AIE
CNAF
2,326,702.25
24.14
CNAHC CNAF
CNAF 51 49
AMS
AG
Ameco
AG Ameco 75 25
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1ASB

IAS 19
IFRS
IFRS
IFRS 11
IAS 16

IFRS 15
IFRS

2014 12 31

2010 2012
2011 2013

IAS 38

622

2014 12 31
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS Lff

For the yeas ended 11 Decambar 2074
[Preperud pndnr tarnational F rsne dl #speing Sandsr)
Eaproad = Ronmenii

2014 A3
Mote RMB'000 RMB000
Turnowver
i traffic revenue 5 101,385,199 Fd,603,168
Other operating revenue & 4,499,423 3,577 A22
105,884,322 8,180,790
Operating expense
Jot funl costs [34,542,440) (33.722,281)
Take-off, landing and depot charges [10,5866,490) (9.585,090)
Depreciation [11,322,989) (10.935,619)
Aircraft maintenance, repair and overhaul costs {3,587,507) (3,063,647)
Employes compensation costs 7 [15.512,764) (14,023,639)
Air catering charges {2,755,640) {2.571,550)
Aircralt and engine operating lease expenses {4,536,641) (4,005,098}
Other operating lease expenses (740.651) [914,75%)
Cthar flight oparation expenses {8,389, 784) (B.257,213)
Selling and marketing expenses {5.899.4633) (5,740,403}
G:;m:-r;t.l .;.|r||;1 .;Flminiﬂf.jl:.w CXRENECS (568,136) FI-_EE‘."'E'?}
{98,622,675) (74,062, 726)
Profit from operations 8 T.261.647 4,118,064
Finance revenug ¥ 230,088 2,265,331
Finance costs ¥ 13,300,723} (2,688,087
Share of profits less losses of associatos 753,658 646,815
Share of profits less losses of joint ventures . 120,191 175,972
Prafit before taxation 5.064,8461 4,518,093
Taxation 10 (779.854) (903,132)
Profit for the year 4,285,007 3,614,951
Artributable to:
- Equity shareholders of the Company 3817449 3,263,642
- Man-controlling interests 467,538 351,319
4,285,007 3,614 941
Earnings per share 14
- Basic and diluted RMB31.05cents RMB24 55cents

The notes on pages 86 to 180 form part of these financial statements. Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 3%9(d).

b >'_
i
o
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For the yeer anded 37 Decamber 2014
{Prepared ymdsi Intematicnsl Finarcisl RBepaiting Saandards)
[Expronved in Ranririil

2014 2013
Mot RME"000 RMB000
Profit for the year 4,285,007 3,614,941
Cther comprehensive (expense)/income for the year
{after tax and reclassification adjustments)
Iterms that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:
= Share of other comprehensive (exponsepincome
of associates and [oint ventures {75,943) 241,958
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:
~ Share of other comprehensive [expenselincome
af associates and joint vantures 13,025,321) Baa N7y
- Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
al available-for-sale financial assets 31,390 i
- Exchange realignment 82,107 [&98,195]
Cther comprehensive (expense)/income far the year 15 (2,987, 747) A27 BAO
Total comprahensive incoma for the year 1,297,240 4,042 841
Attributable to:
- Equity sharehalders of the Campany 815,140 3,707,418
- Non-controlling interests 482,100 335,423
Tatal comprehensive income for the year 1,297,240 4,042 841

Tha notes on pages Bé to 180 form part of these financial statemonts.

L] At CHINA LUMITED | Arnusl Repen 3014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION L{!;

i 11 Decamber 2074

FreEaed warpatinnl T A ol Bopedins ancsnd)
[P d yndar letrnatianal Hupering Standardl
Enprowad = Renmeni

Mote RMB'000 RMB000

MNon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 16 148,179,827 132,805,844
Lease prepayments 17 2,633,658 2,203,377
[mvestment propertics 18 683,655 246,291
Intangible asset 19 36,859 54 524
Gaacheill 20 1,099,975 1,099,975
Interests in associates 22 11,893.85% 14,574,170
Intedests in pomnl vintuies 23 1,292,728 1,284 232
Advance payments for aircraft and flight eguipment 18,148,989 23,261 879
Deposits lor aircralt under operating leases 523,338 425375
Available-for-sale investments 24 88179 45,925
Deferred tax assets 25 3,574,594 3263244
188,257,661 179,265,858

Current assets

Aireraft and flight equipment held for sale 26 440,028 997 Abb
Imventories 27 1,100,179 1,044,617
Accounts receivable 28 2,834,130 28817167
Bills recewable 155 131
Prepayments, depasits and other receivables 29 4,250,374 3,918 445
Financial assets a 12,534 11,350
Diue from the ultimate holding company 150,079 237417
Pledged deposits n 74,570 745,847
Cash and cash equivalenis a1 T.459.987 14,741,830
Other current assets 2,510,998 1.236.93%
21,053,034 25817429
Total assets 209,310,697 205,083,287

The notes on pages 84 to 180 form part of these financial statements.
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Az 31 Dercavyber 2014
{Prepared imdsi Intamaticnsl Finarcisl RBepaiting Saandards)
(Expronned in Ranrarbil

2013
Mot RME"000 RMB000
Current liabilities

Air traffic Rabilities (4,830,804) (4,461,448]
Accounts payable 32 9, 7B8,921) {10,349,535)
Bills payable {150,000) -
Other payables and acoruals k1 (10,535,972) 110,785,877)
Financial abilites an 7,712) (24,0700
Due to the ultimate holding company {21,377} {38,729
Tax paysbsle [607,378) [(355,617)
Obligations under finance leases 34 (4,751,714} (3.:859,317]
Interesi-bearing bank loans and other borrowings a5 (29,292,425) (39,502,214
Provision for major overhauls 34 [B56,789) [699,378]
(60,843,094) (70,074,187
Mat current liabilities (39, 790,058) (44, 254,758)
Total assets less current liabilities 148,467,603 135,009,100

Men-current liabilities
Obligations under finance leases a4 131,240,298 (25,972,715]
Interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings 35 (49.023,1946) (A2, 266, ,406)
Provision {or major overhauls 36 (3,363,1786) (3,283,480
Provision for early retirement benefit obligations {19.210) (35,331]
Lang-term payables ar {38,855) {93,072
Defemred income a8 (3.336,1068) (3.797.501]
Dofarred tax liabilities 25 12,334,882) (2,014,407)
(B9,357,703) (77,462,912
MNET ASSETS 59109 900 57,544,188

The notes on pages B& to 180 form part of these financial statements.

080 At CHINA LUMITED | Arnusl Repen 3014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION f

[Prepeted yncdor ernatznal & Rane s

Mote RMB'000 RME000

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
lssued copital 3% 13,084,751 13,084,751
Treasury shares 39 (3,047,564) {3.047 544)
Resarves 43,941,101 43,720,198
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders

of the Company 53,978,288 53,757,385
Nan-controlling interasts 5.131.612 3.788 803
TOTAL EQUITY 59,109,900 57,546,188

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2015,

Song Zhiyong Fan Cheng
Direcior D¥nechor

The notes on pages 84 to 180 form part of these financial statements.
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9 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Az 31 Dercavyber 2014
{Prepared imdsi Intamaticnsl Finarcisl RBepaiting Saandards)
(Expronned in Ranrarbil

Mot RME"000 RMB000

Mon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 14 102,138,037 57 020,607
Lease prapayments 1F 1,576,050 1,554,115
Intangible assots 19 12,842 30,507
Interests in subsidiaries 21 19,643,911 17,971,735
Interests in AEsoCiates 22 Tob6,148 Tab,148
Interests in joint ventures 23 51,879 B&5477
Advance payments for aircralt and fight equipment 13,275,785 15,560,292
Deposits for aircraft under operating leasas 349,500 250,927
Entrust loarm 1,020,000 -
Available-for-sale investments 24 22,110 22,110
Deferred tax assets 25 2,101,472 2,206,620
141,857,734 136,258,534

Currant assets

Adreraft and flight eguipment held for sale 24 440,028 580,881
Inventories 27 433,178 619,845
Accounts receivanle 28 1,883,131 3.1592.93%
Prepayments, deposits and other roceivables 29 3,514,733 3,363,109
Due from the uliimate holding company 150,079 239,348
Pledged deposits 3 - 563,317
Cash and cash equivalents n 3,258,265 5.924,18%
Other current sssets 1,895,153 1,022,022
11,794,547 15,605,650
Total assets 153,652,301 151,854,184

The notes on pages 86 to 180 form part of these financial statemeants.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION f

i 11 Decamber 2074

FreEaed warpatinnl T A ol Bopedins ancsnd)
[P d yndar letrnatianal Hupering Standardl
Enprowad = Renmeni

2013

Mote RMB'000 RME"000

Current liabilities

Air traffic labilities {3,917.724) (3,700.228)
Accounts payabla 32 {7,189.711) (7,631,747
Other payables and accruals 13 (6,515,213) (3,114, 462)
Financial liabilities 30 - [3.81%
Due ta the ultimane habding company (21,377) (3&,72%)
Tax payable (374,177) {144, 528)
Chligations under fnance leases 34 13,972,048) (3,5546,549)
Interast-bearing bank loans and other borrowings 35 [18,542,372) (25,306,057)
Provisian for majer cverhmls ¥ (407,775} | 35839
[41,140,397) (43,852,530
Net current liabilities e : (29,345,830 (30,245, 880)
Total aszets less current liabilities 112,511,904 106,011,654

Mon-current liabilities

Ohbligations under finance leases 34 [23.895,151) [23.444 512)
Intarest-baaring bank leans and other berrowings 35 [33,612,658) (29.937,02¢8)
Prowvision for major overhauls b {1, 757.510) (1,654, 73%)
Provision for early retirement benefit cbligations (18,751} (34,942)
Deferrad income e {2,798,912) (2,650,844}
Dc-‘lf_-nfcd tax |-:||;|i||lic? 25 (130,177} (244, 745)
162,213,159) (27, 748,808)
MET ASSETS 50,298,745 48,042 Bas
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Issued copital 3% 13,084,751 13,084,751
Reseres 39 37,213,994 34,958,095
TOTAL EQUITY 50,298,745 48,042 846

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2015,

Song Zhiyong Fan Cheng
Director Director
Tha notes on pages B4 to 180 form part of these financial statemants.
5 ey
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9 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the yeer snoed 37 Decamier 2014
(Mrecared ndel Intematicnsl Firaesial R.lpull.r!g Suasardi)
(Expowned in Renr=riil

Utvbariss ' wity darebgidien = the Company
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The notes on pages B4 to 180 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 11 Decambar 2074
[Preperud pndnr tarnational F rsne dl #speing Sandsr)
Eaproad = Ronmenii

2013
Mate RMB'ODO RMB 000
Oparating activities
Cash genaratad from operations by 18,052,301 18,001,555
Income tax pasd (529,450) (565,439}
Intarest paid (3,458,903 (2,827, TE&)
Met cash generated from operating activities 14,063,948 14,608,330
Investing activities
Purchases of items of propeny, plant and equipment [1B,574,371) (17.914,728)
Purchases of investment properties = {49}
Purchases of intangible assets - {18
Increasa in lease prepaymeants (429.3135) (138, 763)
Decrease/(increase) in advance payments for aircraft
and flight equipment 5,112,890 {4,564, 895)
Proceeds from disposal of items of propeny,
plant and equipmnt 281,709 675,922
Proceeds from disposal of held-for-sale assats E&5,518 580,337
Decrease of intangible assets 17,665 4710
Met settbernents of financial labilities {10,342} (81,008)
Decrease in pledged doposits 672,172 54997
Interest received 238,424 247 575
Capital contributions by nan-controlling interests
of a subsidiary 80,000 200,000
Purchase of an associate and & joint veniure (1400) (10,403}
Dividends received from assoclales and joint ventures. =~ 4224692 ° 298500
Met cash used in investing activities - ) [10,313,158)  (20,638,071)
Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of new shares - 1,044 249
Mew bank loans and other loans 39,092,053 35.070.880
Proceeds from msue of corporate bonds 1,834,120 10,700,000
Repayment of bank loans and other loens {40,852,47E) [31.475.329)
Repayment of principals under linance lpase obligations (4,591,974} (3,679, 115)
Repayment of corporate bongs (3.700,000) (1,500,000}
Pividends peid i (710,987 18¥0 175
Met cash (used in\'generated fram financing activities (8,859,166) 9.270,707
Met (decreaselfincrease in cash and cash equivalents {5,108.374) 3,240,944
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 31{a) 14,741,830 11,787,943
Effact of foreign exchange rate changes 4,533 (267,079)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 31{a) 9,659,987 14,761,830

The notes on pages B4 to 180 form part of these financial statements.
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9 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Prepaned under Intemnations! Financial Beporting Standards]
(Eag

et ih Ranmrirbi wnlen ptharahs md=sated

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

Ajr China Limited (the "Company”) was established as a joint stock limited company in Beijing, the
Poople's Republic of China (the "PRCT), on 30 September 2004, The Company’s H shares are listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the "HKSE®) and the London Stock Exchange (the *LSE") while
the Company's A sharas are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. In the opinion of the Directors,
the Company’s parent and ultimate holding company is China Mational Aviation Holding Company
[FCHAHC"), o PRC state-owned enterprise under the supenision of the State Council.

Pursuant to the approval of China Securities Regulatory Commission [2013] 37 on 18 January 2013, the
Company issued 192,796,331 new A shares with RMB1,050,740,004 at the price of RMB5.45 par share
to CMAHC. By deducting of the RMBA 290,821 issue fee, the net cash inflow was RMB1,044, 449,183,
After the msuance of A sharas as at 30 January 2013, the registered capital and paid in capital of the
Company have increased to RMB13,084,757,004.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to the "Group®) consist
of the provision of airline, airline-related services, including aircraft engineering services, air catering
services and airport ground handling services, mainly in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau,

The registered office of the Company is located st Blue Sky Mansion, 28 Tisnrhu Road, Airport
Industrial Zone, Shunyi District, Beijing 101312, the PRL.

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

{a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been preapared in accordance with all applicoble International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"), which collactive term includes all applicable individual
International Financial Reparting Standards, laternationsl Accounting Standasrds ("IASs")
and Interpretations issued by the Internaticnal Accounting Standards Board ("IASE”). These
financial statements alsa comply with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kang Companies
Ordinance, which for this financial year and the comparative period continue to be those of
the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32, in accordance with transitional
and saving arrangements for Part ¥ of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance {Cap. 622),
"Accounts and Audit®, which are set out in sections 76 to &7 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance.
Thess financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, A summary of
the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are first effective or available for early
edoption for the current accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2{c) provides
infermatian an any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments o the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting parieds reflectad in these financial statements.

[0:0] At CHINA LUMITED | Arnusl Repen 3014
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MOTES TC THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS ‘U!P,

|Prepaend wsder Miarnamonal Fsancial Hoporaing Standmnds]

Exariiad ir Taaminki e athorighe sdicatsed]

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statemants

As at 31 December 2014, the Group's and the Company’s current liabilities exceaded its current
assets by approximately RMB392.79 billion and RMB29.35 billion respectively. The liguidity of
the Group and the Company & primarily dependent on ita ability to maintain sdeqguate cash
inflows from operations and sufficient financing to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due. Considering the Company's sources of liquidity and the unutilised bank facilities
of approximately RMB7E billion as at 371 December 2014, the Directors of the Company believe
that adequate funding is available te fulfill the Group's and the Company's debt ebligations and
capitol expenditure requirements when preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
Dacember 2014, Accordingly, the financial statemants have besn prepared on a baszis that the
Group and the Company will be able to continue as a going concen.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 comprisa the
Group and the Group®s interest in associates and joint ventures.

The messurement basis uied in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that the following assets and habilittes are stated at their fair value as explained in
the accounting paolicias set out belaw:

- financial instruments classified as trading securities (see note 2(g)).

Mon-current assets held for sale are siated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell {see note 2(cc)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of paolicies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and varicus other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under tha circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources, Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an angoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the pericd in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the ravision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of IFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation uncenainty are discussed in note 3.

)
L vt
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(<)

Changes in accounting policies

The IASE has issved and the following amendments to IFRSs and one new Interpretation that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group.

. Amendmients to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27, Investment entities

. Amendments to LAS 32, Offsetting financlal assefs and financial fabilties

Ly Amendments to IAS 34, Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financlal assets

. Amendments to |45 3%, Novation of dervatives and confinuation of hedge accounting

. IFRIC 21, Levies

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period. impacts of the adoption of the new or amended IFRSs are discussed
below:

Amendments te IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27, Investment entities

The amendments pravide cansolidation relief 1o those parents which gualify to be an investment
entity as defined in the amended IFRS 10. Investment entities are required to measure their
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss. These amendments do not have an impact on
these financial statements as the Company and its subsidiaries do not qualify to be investment
mrtities,

Amendments te 1AS 32, Offsetting financial assets and financial Kabilities

The amendmants ta 1AS 32 clarify the offsetting criteria in 145 32, The amandmaents do not have
any material impact on these financial statements as they are consistant with the policias already
adopted by the Group.

Amendments to IAS 34, Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets

The amendments to 145 36 modify the disclosure requirements for impaired non-financial assets.
Among them, the amendments expand the disclosures required for an impaired asset or CGU
whase recaverable amount ks based on fair value less costs of disposal. The amandments de not
hawve any material impact on these financial statemants.

Amendments to 1AS 39, Novation of derivatives and continuation of hedge accounting

The amendments to 1AS 39 provide relief from discontinuing hedge accounting when novation
of a derivative designated as a hedging instrument mests certain criteria. The amendments do
not have any material impact on thesa financial statements as the Group has not novated any of
its derivatives.

IFRIC 21, Levies
The Interpretation provides guidance on whan a liability to pay a levy imposed by a government

should be recognised. The amendments do not have any material impact on these financial
statements as the guidance s consistent with the Group’s existing accounting policies.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-contrelling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
ta affect those returns through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, anly substantive rights {held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
gliminated n full in preparing the consolidated financial staterments, Unrealised losses resulting
from Intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there i3 no evidence of impairment.

Mon-centrolling interests represent the equity in @ subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result in the Group 2s 8 whale having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect to measwre any non-controfling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests” proportionate share of the
subsidiary's net ientifisble assets.

MNon-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position within
aquity, separately from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interasts in the results of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total prafit or loas and total comprehensive income for the year
batwean non-controlling interests and the equity sharsholders of the Company. Loans from
holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual abligations towards these holders are
presanted as financial liabilities o the consclidated statement of finangial poasition in accordance
with notes 2is) or (tj depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in & loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
reelative interests, but no adjustmaents are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as 8 disposal of the entire
interast in that subsidiary. with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
mterest retained in that former subsidiary a1 the date when control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see
note 2(al) or, when appropriste, the cost on initisl récognition of an investment in An associate
or @ joint venture (note 2leh),

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
liess impairment losses (see note 2(m)), unless the investment s classified a3 hald for sales (or
intluded in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale) (see note 2iccl).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has significant influence, but not
control or joint control, over its management, including participation in the financial and
aperating policy decisiona.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or the Company and other parties
contractually agree to share control of the arrangemeant, and have rights to the net assets of the
urrangem.enl..

An nvestment in &0 associate or A joint venturs is accounted far in the consalidated financial
statements under the equity method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classifisd as held for sale) (see note 2{cel)l. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group's share of
the acquisition-date fair values of the investee's identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investrmant {if any). Thereafter, tha investment is adjusted for the post acguisition change in the
Group's share of the investee's net assets and any impairment loss relating to the investment
[see notes 2] and [m)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the investess and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group's share of the
post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive income i recognised in
the consolidated staternent of profit or loss and ather comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate or the joint venture, the
Group's interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further |osses s discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the investee. For this purpose, the Group's interest (s the carrying amount of the investment
undar tha equity mathod together with the Group's long-term interests that in substance form
pant of the Group's net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates
and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the investee, except
where unraalised loszes provide evidence of an impairment of the assetr transferred, in which
case they are recognised immediately in profit or loss,

If an investmant in an associate bacomaes an investment in @ joint ventura or vice versa, ratained
interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method.

Im all other coses, when the Group cesses to have significant influence over an associate or
joint control over a joint venturs, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
investes, with & resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or logs. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant influence or joint control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initisl recognition of & finsncial
asset [see note Agll

In the Company's statement of financial position, investments in associates and joint ventures
are stated at cost less impairment losses [see note 2(ml, unless classified as held for ssle (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale) (ses note 2(cch).
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(fl Goodwill

Goodwill reprasents the excess of

{1 the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group's previously held
equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair velue of the acquires's (dentifiable assets and liabilities measurad as at the
acquisition date,

When (i) is greater than {i}, then this excess is recognised mmediately in profit or loss as a gain
on & bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumuwlated impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combénation and is tested annually for impairment
(sae nate 2iml).

On disposal of a cash genarating unit during the yaar, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

{g) Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group's and the Company’s policies for investments in debt and equity securities, other
than investments in subsidiaries, associatas and joint ventures, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially statad at fair value, which is thair
transaction price unless it is determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs fram the
transoction price and that fair value is evidenced by & quoted price in an actve market for an
identical asset or liabality or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable
markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise below.
These investments are subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified as current assets. Any attributable
transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred, At the end of each reporting
period the fair value & remeasured, with any resultant gain or lods being recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include any interest or dividends
earned on these investments as these are recognised in accordance with the policies set out in

note Z{wliii] and 20wiiv), respectively.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

{g) Other investmants in debt and equity securities (Continued)

Imvestments in securities which do not fall into any of the abowve categories are classified as
available-for-sale securities. At the end of each reporting period the fair value s remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve. As an exception 1o this, investments in
eguity securities that do not have a queted price in an active market for an Identical instrument
and whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably measured are recognised in the statemant of
financial position at cost less impairment |osses (see note 2(m)). Dividend income fram equity
sacurities and interest income from debt securities calculated using the effective interest method
arg recognied in pﬂ)‘ﬁﬂ or loss in accordance with the palicies set out in notes 2(wiliv) and 2(w{in),
respectively, Foreign eschange gains and losses resulting from changes in the amortised cost of
debt securities are elso recognised in profit or logs.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see note 2(m)), the cumulative gain or loss
recognised in equity is reclassified to profit or loss. Investmaents are recognised/derecognised on
the date the Group commits 1o purchass/sell the investments or they expine.

{h) Property, plant and equipment

Proparty, plant and equipment other than construction in progress, are stated at cost loss
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses (see note 2{m)), The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended wse.

Expenditure incurred after itams of property, plant and equipment have been put into operation,
such as repairs and maintenance, i normally charged to the profit or loss in the period in which
it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the espenditure for a
major inspaction is capatalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Whare
significant parts of property. plant and equipment are required 1o be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts s individual assets with specific useful lves and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each item of
property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its estimated uzeful life. The estimated
useful lives and residual values used for this purpose are as follows:

Eatimated Residual Depreciation

useful life walue rate

Aircrafi and flight equipment:

Covre parts of aiframe and engine 15 to 30 years 5% 317 R-6.33%
Overhaul of aiframe and cabin
refurbishment 5to 12 years il B.33%-20%
Overhaul of engine 2 to 15 years Ml LATH-50%
Rotable 3 to 15 years il &467%-33.33%
Buildings 10 to 50 years Mil-5% 1.90%-10%
Machinery 4 to 20 years Mil-5% 4.75%-25%
Transportation equipmant 3 te 20 yaars Mil-5% 4.75%-33.33%
Crffice equipmant 4 to 8 years Mil-5% 11.88%-25%
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Preperty, plant and equipment (Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipmant have different uselul lives, the cost
of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
saparately.

The assets” residusl values, useful lives and the deprecistion method are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at least at each financial year and.

An item of property, plant and equipmaent including any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on darecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds end the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment under finance leases are depreciated ower the same terms as
seli-owned fixed aszets. If it is ressonably assured that the ownership of the leased property,
plant and equipment could be transferred to the Group after the lease periods, the leased
mzssts are depreciated over its estimated wseful |fe. Otherwise, leased assets are depreciated
over the shorter of the estimated wseful lives of the assets and the lease terms.

Construction in progress represents buildings or various infrastructure projects under
construction, and equipment pending for installatlon in aircraft. Construction in progress is
stated at cost less any impairment losses (see note 2(m)} and is not depreciated. Costs of
construction in progress comprise the direct costs of construction, the cost of equipment as wall
as capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the construction or installation
period. Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipmant when completed and ready for use.

Tha carryping amaunts of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
evants or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amouwnts may not be recoverabla.

(i} Invastment propertias

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (incdluding the leasehold interest under
an operating lease for a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

nvestment properties are measured intially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
costs are recognised in the canying amount of the investment properties if it is probable that
future econamic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the costs can be
measured reliably, Otherwise, these costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The Group chooses the cost method to measure its investment properties.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOQUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i) Investment properties (Continued)

Depreciation ks calculated on the straight-line bases to write off the cost to its residual value aver
its estmated useful life, The estimated useful lives and residual values used for this purpose are

B3 fallaws:
Estimated Residual Depreciation
usaful life walua rate
Bulldings 20 to 30 years % 3.17%-4.75%
Lease prepaymants 50 yaars - i

The carrying amounts of investment proparties measured at the cost method are reviewsd for
impairment when évents of changes in eircumstances indicate that the carrying Mmounla may not
be recoverable,

{i) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation [whare the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 2(m).
Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands s recognised as an expense in the
purio-d n which it B incurmed.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their vseful lives are assessed to be indefinite.
Any conclusion that the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to
determine whether events and circumstances cantinue to support the indefinite useful life
asgsessment for that asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite
to finite is accounted for prospectively from the date of change and in accordance with the
policy for amortisation of intangibla assets with finite lives.

(k) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance
of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is
depandent on the use of & specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use
the asset.

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of cwnership
of the leased item, are capitalised at the Inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased
assat or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Minimum lease payments
are apportionad batween the finance charges and reduction of the outstanding liability so as to
achieve a constant periodical rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
charges are charged 1o the prnl’ut or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Leases (Continued)

Leazes where the lessor retsins substantislly all the risks and rewasrds of cwnership of the asset
are classified as operating leases, Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating lesstes are included in non-cufrent Aisets and rentals recelvable under the
operating leases are credited to the profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to the profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prapaid land lsase payments under operating leases are initislly stated at cost and subsequently
recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the leaso payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the lend and buildings elements, the entire lease payments
are Included in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and
equiprment.

(I} Advance payments for aircraft and flight equipmeant

Advance contractual payments to aircraft manufacturers to secure deliveries of aircraft and
flight equipmeant in future years, including attributable finance costs, are included in assets. The
advances are accounted for as part of the cost of property, plant and equipment upon delivery
of the aircrafi and flight equipment.

(m} Impairment of assets
ik Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and other receivables

Investrnents in debt and equity securities and others current and Aon-current receivables
that are stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified as available-for-sale securities
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is shjective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes cbservable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about one or mare of the follawing loss events:

- significant financial dill'rculw ol the debtor;

- & breach of contract, such a3 a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial
T GanISation;

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic o legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOQUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

{m) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i} Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and other receivables
(Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and recognised as follows:

- For investments in associates and joint ventures accounted for undaer the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements (s2e note 2{el), the impairment
loss s measured by comparing the recoverable amount of the investment with its
carrying amount in accordance with note 2imifiil. The impairment loss i reversed
if there has been a favovrable change in the estimates used to determing the
recoverable amount in accordance with note 2im)(ii).

- For unguoted equity securities carried at cost, the impairment loss s measwred
as the difference betwsen the carrying amount of the financial asset and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset where the effect of discounting s material. Impairment losses
for equity securities carried at cost are not raversed.

- Fer trade and other current receivables and other financial assets carried at
amartised cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s camrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment is made collectively where these financial
assats share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due status, and have nat
boan individually assessad as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which
are assessed for impairment collectively are based on historical loss experience for
assats with credit risk charactenstics similar to the callactive group.

If in & subsequent period the amount of an mpairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through prafit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been datermined had no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.

- For available-for-zale securities, the cumulative loss that has been recognised in the
fair value reserve is reclassified to profit ar loss. The amount of the cumulative loss
that is recognised in profit or loss is the difference between the acqguisition cost
{net of any principal repayment and amaortisation) and current fair value, bess any
impairment loss on that asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of available-for-sale equity

securitigs ara not revarsed through profit o loss. Any subseguent incréase in the
fair value of such assets is recognised in other comprahensive income.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)

ik Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and other receivables
{Continued)

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increose in fair value can be objectively reloted to an event occurring after
the impairment boss was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses in such circomstances
are recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets directly, except far
impairmant losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and bills receivable included
within trade and other receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
imecoverable is written off against trade debters and bills receivable directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previcusly charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance acceunt. Other changes in the sllowance sccount and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

fii]  Impairmant of other assats
Internal and external sources of information are reviewsd at the end of sach reporting
period to identify indications that the following assets may be impaired ar, except in the
case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:
- property, plant and equipment;
- lease prepayments;
- intangible assets;
- advance payments for aircraft and flight eqguipment
- goodwill; and

- investments In subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures in the Company's
statement of financial pesition.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s rocoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for
goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there i any indication of impairment.

208/304



9 MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Eag

2

L]

ared under Intematione! Financial Beporting Ssandards)

et ih Ranmrirbi wnlen ptharahs md=sated

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(i}

Impairment of other assets (Continued)
- Calculation of recoverable amaount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and velue in use, In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value uzing a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market gssessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 1o the
asset, Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows independently {i.e. a cash-generating unit).

- Recogniticn of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying amount of an
assat, or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units] on a pro rata basis, sxcept that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if determinabile).

- Reversals of impairment losses

In raspect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is reversed if there
has bean a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amaunt. &n impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A revarsal of an impairment loss is limited 1o the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impeirment loss been recognised in prior
years, Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Gowerning the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kang Limited, the Group is required to prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with 145 34, infenm financie! reporting, in respact of the first six months of the financial
year, At the end of the interim period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the financial year {see notes 2(mi(i)
and [if}).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of goodwill, available-for-
sale equity securities and unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not reversed in
a subsequent period. This Is the case aven if no loss, or a smaller foss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates. Consequently, i the fair value of an avallable-for-ssle
gquity security increases in the remainder of the annual period, or in any other period
subsequently, the increase is recognised in other. comprehensive income and not profit or
foss,
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

{n) Treasury shares

Own equity instruments (treasury shares) are recogrised at cost and deducted fram squity.
Mo gain or loss is recognised in the profit or loss on the purchase, sale, isswe or cancellation
of the Group's own equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying amaount and the
consideration is recognised in equity.

(e} Inventories

Inventories, which consist primarily of expendable spare parts and supplies, are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis. Met
realisable value is determined on the basis of anticipated sales proceeds less estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.

{p) Trade and other receivable

Trade and other receivable is initially recognized at fair value and thereafier stated at amortised
cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(m)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the elect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivable is stated at cost less
allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful debis.

{g) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compeise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
inte known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three manths of maturity at acquisition, Bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management are alse included
a5 a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
sTATEmEnt.

(r) Manufacturers® credits

In conAaction with the scquisition of cartain aircraft and flight equipment, the Group receives
various credits from the manufacturers. Such credits are deferred until the aircraft and flight
equipment are delivered, at which time they are applied as & reduction of the cost of acquiring
the aircraft and flight equipment.

(s} Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recogaition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
coat with any difference between the amount initially recognised and redemotion value being
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrawings, together with any interest and
fees payable, using the effective interest method.

(t} Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value, Trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stoted at cost

>
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

L(T)]

(v

Provisions

A prevision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the abligations and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligations.
When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision is the present
value ai the end of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present valus amount arising from the
passage of time is included in the profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises currant tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
linbilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in
prafit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in eqguity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensiva income or directly in equity, respactivaly.

Current tax i3 the expected tox payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reparting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of pravious years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary diffarences
respectively, being the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
finpncial reporting purposes end their tax bases. Deferred tax sssets also arise from wnused tax
lesses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those differences relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods
inte which a tax lass ariting from the deferred tax aseet can be carred back or forward. The
same criteria are adoptad when determining whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred thx assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that
is, those differences are taken into atcount if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a perod, or periods; in which the tax loss or
cradit can be utifised,

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
diffsrences arising fram geodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of
assets or labilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temparary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that. in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case
of deductible differances, unless it is probable that they will revarse in the future.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v} Income tax [Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised s measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax sssets and
liabilitias are not discounted

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficlent tasable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, are presented
saparately from sach other and ars not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax
liabilities, and deferred tax mssets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group
has the tegally enforceabla right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the Group intends either
to sottle on o net basis, or to realise the asset and sottle the liskility simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and labilities, if they relate to income taxes lavied by
the same taxation authority on aither:

- the same taxable entity: or

- differant taxable antities, which, in each future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tox asseis and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis
or realise and zertle simultanesously.

(w) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. The foliowing specific recognition critaria
must also be met before revenue is recognised:

(il Provision of airline and airline-related services

Passenger revenus is recognised either when transportation services are provided or when
an unusad ticket expires rather than when a ticket is sald. Ticket sales for transportation
not yet provided are included in current liabilities as air traffic lisbilines. In addition, the
Group has code-sharing agreements with other aidines under which a carriar’s flights can
be marketed under the two-letter airling designator code of another carrier. Revenues
eamed under these arrangements are allocated between the code share partners based
on existing contractusl agreements and airling industry stendard pro-ratio formulse and
are recognised as passenger ravenue when tha transportation services are provided.

Cargo and mail revanue is recognised whan transportation services are provided.

Revenue from alrline-related services is recognised when the relevant services are
rendered,
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w}

(x)

ly)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
have been passed to the buyer.

{iii]  Interest income
Interest income is recognised es it accrues using the effective interest method.
{ivl Dhividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the Group's rights to receive payments is
established.

(v}  Rental income and aircraft and flight equipment lease income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the terms of the respective
leases,

Frequent-flyer programmes

The Group operates frequent-flyer programmes which allow customers to earn miles when
they purchase air tickets from the Group. The miles can then be redeemed for free services or
products, subject to a minimum number of points 10 be obtained. The consideration received
of receivable from the tickets sold is allocated between the miles eamed by the frequent-flyer
programme members and the other components of the sales transactions. The amount alfocated
to the miles earned by the frequent-flysr programme members s deferred until the miles are
redearned when the Group fulfills its obligations to supply services or products or when the
miles expire.

Maintenance and overhaul costs

In respect of aireraft and engines under operating leases, the Group has the responsibility
to fulfill cartain return conditions under the relevant operating leases. In order to fulfill these
return conditions, major overhauls are required 1o be conducted on a regutar basis. Accordingly,
estimated costs of major overhauls for aircraft and engines under operating leases are accrued
and charged 1o the profit or loss over the estimated period between overhauls using the ratios
of actual flying hoursfcycles and estimated flying hours/cycles between overhauls. The costs of
major overhauls comprise mainly labour and materials. Differences between the estimated costs
and the actual costs of overhauls are included in the profit or loss in the period of overhaul.

In respect of aircraft and engines owned by the Group or held under finance leases, costs of
major overhauls are recognised in the carrying amount of the property, plant and eguipment
as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. Overhaul components subject to
replacement during major overhauls are depreciated over the expected life between major
overhauls.

All other routine repair and maintenance costs incurred in restoring such property, plant and
equipmant to their normal working condition are charged to the profit or loss as and when
incurred,
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(z} Gevernment grants

Gavernmant grants are recognised at their fair value where there i reatonable assurance that
the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant
relates to an axpends ibem, it 8 recognised ad income on A systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed,

‘Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is oredited to a deferred income account
and iz released 1o the profit or loes over the éxpected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual installments or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and released to the profit
or logs by way of & reduced depraciation chargs.

Where the Group receives a non-monetary grant, the asset and the grant are recorded at the
fair value of the non-monetary asset and released to the profit or loss over the expected usaful
life of the relevant asset by equal annual installments.

(aa) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition of aircraft, construction or production
aof gualifying assets, that is, assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the costs of those assets. The
capitalisation of aircralt borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready lor their
intandad use or sale are intarrupted or complete. Investmant income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs copitalised. All other borrowing costs sre expensed in the period in
which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

(bb) Employee benefits
ik Pension obligations

The full-time employees of the Group are covered by various government-sponsorad
pension plans under which the employees are entitled 1o a monthly pension based on
certain formula. Certain government agencies are responsible for the pansion liability
to these retired employees. The Group contributes on 8 menthly basis to these pension
plans. Under these plans, the Group has no legal or constructive obligations for
retirement benefits beyond the contributions made. Contributions to these plans are
expensed as incurred. In addition to these plans, the Company, Air China Cargo Co.,
Ltd. {"Air China Cargo”), Beijing Airlines Co., Ltd. ("Beijing Airlines"), Dalian Airlines
Co., Ltd, {"Dalian Airlines™), Shenzhen Airlines Co., Ltd. |"Shanzhen Airlines"), Beijing
Golden Phoenix Human Resource Ca, Ltd. ("Golden Phoenix”), Zhejiang Air Services Co.,
Ltd.{"Zhejiang Air Services”), Air China Group Import and Export Trading Co. (“AIE®),
Shanghai Alr China Aviation Service Co., Ltd. ["Shanghai Alr Services®) and Chengdu
Falcon Aircraft Engineering Service Co., Lid. (*Chengdu Falcon®) had implemented
defined contribution retirement scheme for voluntary employess. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ total salaries and are charged to the profit or
loss in accordance with the rules of the scheme.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

{bb) Employee benefits (Continued]

(i

{iif}

{iv)

Termination and early retirement benefits

Termination benafits are payable whenever an employee's employment i3 voluntarily
terminated before the normal retirement date or whenever an employee accepis
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either terminating the employment of
current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal
or to providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy.

Housing benefits

Al full-ime employees of the Group are entitled to participate in various government-
spansared housing funds, The Group contributes on a monthly basis to thase funds based
on certain percentages of the salaries of the employees. The Group's liability in respect
of these funds is limited to the contributions payable in each year.

Share-based paymants

The Company operates a share appreciation rights (“SARs") plan for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards 1o eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Employees (incleding directors) of the Group are entitled to
a future cash payment (rather than an equity instrument] (“cash-settled transactions™),
based on the increasa in the entity’s share price from a specified level over a specified
period of time. The Company recognises the services received, and a liability to pay for
these services, as the employses rendar sorvices.

Tha cost of cash-settled transactions with employeas s measured initially at fair value at
the grant date using a binomial model. The liability is remeasured at each reporting date
up to and including the settlement date, with any chonges in fair velue recognised in
profit or loss for the period.

{ec) Mon-current assets held for sale

Man-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts
will be recovered peincipally throwgh a sales transaction rather than through continuing use
For this to be the case, the asset must be available for immediate sale in its present condition
subject only to terms that are usual and customary for the sale of such assets and its sale must
be highly probable.

Man-current assets classified as held for sale are measured ot the lower of their carrying amournts
and fair values less costs to sell.

Impairment losses on initial classfication as held for sale, and on subsegquent remeasurement
while held for sale, are recognised in profit or loss. As long as & non-current asset is classified as
held for sale, or is included in & disposal group that is classified as hald for sale, the non-current
paset ks not depreciated or amaortised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(dd) Translation of foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the Company's functionsl and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of sach entity are measured using that functional currency.

Foreign curfency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group ere initially recorded in
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monatary
assets and labilities denominated in Fr,we:'gn currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
tranalatinn of monatary items are recognised in the profit or loss.

Mon-manetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Mon-monatary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated wsing the exchange rates at
the date whan the fair value was determined. The gain or loss ansing on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e,, translation difference on the items whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or prafit or loss i3 also recognised in other
comprahensive income or profit or loss, respectivelyl

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into RMEB at the rates of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their profits or losses are translated into RMB at the average exchange
rates for the period of the wanslations. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the !'nrelgn exchange transiation reserve, On
disposal of a foreign operation, the componant of other comprahensive income ralating to that
particular forekgn entity is recognised in the profit or loss

(ea) Related parties

fal A person, or a close member of that person’s family, s related to the Group if that
parson:

(i} has control or joint control over the Group;
(i} has significant influence ower the Group; or

(i} is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

{ee) Related parties (Continued)

(ff)

(b}  An entity is related 1o the Group if any of the following condition: appliss:

(i The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which maans that sach
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others),

{in} One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member),

(i) Both entitias are joint ventures of the same third party.

fiv] One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity i3 an associate of
tha third entity,

ik The entity is a post-emplayment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of mither
the Group or an entity related to the Group.

iwi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

[wild A persen identified in (a)(l) has significant influence over the entity of i3 8 member
of the key managament personnel of the entity (or of a parent of tha antity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of sach segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial information provided regularly to the Group's most
senior executive management for the purpeses of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's vanous lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the mathods used to distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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3  ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

The Group's financial eondition and results of operations are sensitive to accounting methods,
assumptions and estimates that underlie the preparation of these financial statements. The Group
bases the assumptions and estimates on historical experience and on various other assumpticns that
tha Group baliaves to be raasonable and which form the basis for making judgements about matters
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from those estimates as
facts, dircumstances and conditions change.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and other uncertainties affecting
application of those polices and the sensitivity of reported results to changes in conditions and
assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing these financial statements. The principal
accounting policies are set forth in note 2. The Group believes the following oritical accounting policies
invalve the most significant judgements and estimates uged in the preparation of these financial
statemants.

- Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill = impaired at feast on an annual basis. This requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-genarating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the velue in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31
Dacember 2014 was BMB1,100 millien {371 December 2013: RMB1,100 million), More datails are
given in note 20 o the financial statements.

- Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group sssesses whather thore are any indicators of impairment for all non-fingncial assets
at the end of each reporting pericd, Indefinite fife intangible assets are tested for impaiment
annually and at other times when such indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested
for impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An |mpairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use. The calculation of the fair value less costs 1o sell is based on available data from binding
salas transactions in an arm's length transaction of similar assets or obsarvable market prices
less incramental costs for disposal of the asset. When wvalue in use calculations sre undertaken,
managemant must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-gensrating
unit and choase a suiteble discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.

- Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the exwent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
Judgement is required to estimate the amount of deferred tax sssets that can be recognized,
based upon the likely timing and lovel of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
El;fﬂtv!'gll!'!..
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

QOverhaul cost

Cost of averhaul for aircraft and engines under operating leases are accrued and charged 1o the
profit or loss over the estimated overhaul period, This requires estimation of the expected flying
hauraleyeles, sverhaul cost and ovarhaul cyele, which are largely based an the past experiance
of overhauls of aircraft and engines of the same or similar types. Different estimates could
significantly affect the estimated overhaul provision and the resulis of operations.

Deferred income

Thie amount of revenue attributable to the miles earned by the members of the Group's
frequent-flyer programme is estimated bazed on the fair value of the miles awarded and the
expocted redemption rate. The fair value of the miles awarded is estimated by reference to
external sales. The expected redemplion rete was estimated considering the number of the
miles that will ba available for redemption in the future after allowing for miles which are not
expected 1o be redeemed,

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed separately, sccording to the nature
of their cperations and the services they provide. The Group has the following reportable operating
SEgments:

(al

(B

the “airline operations” segment which comprises the pravision of air passenger and air cargo
services; and

the “other operations” segment which comprises the provision of aircraft engineering, ground
services and other aifine-related services,

In determining the Group's geographical information, revenue is attributed to the segments based
on the origin and destination of each flight. Assets, which consist principally of aircraft and ground
equipment, supporting the Group's wortldwide transportation network, are mainly located in Mainland
China. &n analysis of the assats of the Group by gecgraphical distribution has tharefors not been
included.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the selling prices used for sales made
to third parties at the then prevailing market prices,
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4  OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Operating segmants

The following tables prasent the Group’s consolidated revenue and profit before taxation regarding
the Group’s operating segments in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
of the PRC ["CASs"] far the yvears ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 and the reconciliations of
reportable segment revenue and profit before taxation to the Group's consolidated amounts under
IFRSs:

Year ended 31 December 2014

Airlins Other
oparations operations  Eliminations
RMB'D00 RME"D00 RMB 00D
Revenue
Sales to external customerns 104,651,713 173.970 - 104,825,683
Intersegment sakes - 2,213,054 {2,213,054) -

Revanue for reportable segments

unchar CASS 104,651,713 2,387,024 (2,213,054) 104,825,683
Business tax not incleded in

SEQMEN] revenue (188.014)
Crther income not inchuded in

SEQMEnt revenug 1,157,998
Efects of dilerences between

IFRSs and CASs B8.4657
Revanue for the year under IFRSs 105,884,322

Segment profit before taxation

Profit befora taxation for
reportable segments under CASs 4,940,011 78,075 - 5,018,088

Effacts of differences botween
IFRSs and CASs 46,773

Prafit before taxation for the year
under IFRSs 5,064,861
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4  OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Operating segments (Cantinued)
Year ended 31 December 2013

Alrline Cither
operations opEratons Eliminateomns Tatal
RAB'O00 RMB'000 RME D00 RMB'000
Revenua
Sales to external customers 97,493,291 129,962 - 97628253
Intersagmant sales - 2,008,008 (2,008 008) -
Revenue for reportable segments
undher CASs 7. 498 291 2,137,970 12,008,008} 97,4628 251
Business tax not included in
segment revenue {308,512)
Other income not included in
LEGMEnt fevEnue 772,392
Elfects of difforencos botwoon
IFRSs and CASs 38,657
Revenue for the year under IFRSs 98,180,790
Segment profit before taxation
Profit before taxation for
repartable segmants under CASs 4,413,935 169,453 = 4,583,388
Effects of differences between
IFRSs and CASs {45,295)
Profit before taxation for the year
uncher IFRSs 4,518,093
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4  OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Operating segmants (Continued)

The fallawing tables present the seqment assets, liabilities and other information of the Group's
operating segments under CASs as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 and the reconciliations of
rapartable segment assats, lisbilities and other information to the Group's cansalidated smaunts under
IFR5s:

Airling Other

operations operations Eliminations
RME'O00 FME D00 RMB000

Segment assets

Total assets for reportable - seqments
as 8l 31 December 2014 nder CASs 206,322,456 4243577 (923,504} 05,442 867

EHecty of differences batwesn
IFR%Ss and CASs (232172

Total assets under IFRSs 209,310,497

Tatal assets for reponable segments
a5 al 31 December 2013 tnder CASs 202,124,315 4,365,913 11,128,345) 205,361,883

EHecty of differences batwesn

IFR%Ss and CASs (278,59¢1

Total assets under IFRSs 205,083,287
5 B

& m
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Operating segments (Cantinued)

Orther
operatong Elimirat:ons Ttz
RNBTX] RME'0 BRABT00
Segment linbalities
Total labilities for reponable segments
2t at 31 December 2014 ynder CASs 150,552,684 542,163 {723,604 150,179,245
Efiecis of differences between
FRSs and CASs 29,562
Total liabilities undar [FiSs 150,200,797
Total labilities lor reporiable segments
&t at 31 Decembor 2013 under CASs 147,507,445 1,039,770 (1,128,345 147,418,690
Efiecis of differences between
FRSs and CASs 118205
Total labilities under [FRSs 147,537,000
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued]

Operating segmants (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2014

Other segoant information

Share: o profis ‘a3 losses of pacciates
#d joant ventures

Impaiment loates racognibed in
profe or loss, net

Dupreciation and amarlisation

Firanca revenug

Fieunce oo

Tamtor

Interests i swwocates and jont vertues
Additions! ta non-curren] amety

104,060

(131,591
11,596,312
10433
1,463,882
131416

11,435,632
31,196,054

Orchee
operations,
EMBTO0

173,789

1,840
16,350
11,58
[350)
16,744

1Hzan
413

Elimnatices
EMBN

P

(3,407}
[3,407)

LIEE-

(29,751)
1412702
neao
3480,125
T

13,364,005
Eifrab R

4193
(281.328)
10E78
(155,402
11694

(E1,418)

EDINETOOOO
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89,558
11,389,304
230,088
3,300,722
774,854

13,288,587
M.211.087

Year ended 31 December 2013

oOoOooodn

Other segeeant infoemation
Share: of profos less losses of asocates

arcd joint verihirs 405,821 215,908 - 822 767 - B22.787
Impacrment losses reconnimed in

predt of loss, net 450,714 i - L eb | 1or.ae7 SReLas
Depracation aad amanisabon 1113873 13,684 = TS 04530 11023824
Firance rewinue 224523 15,535 2,261 004 LT B Rk
Frrance oosts 3,035,084 BN - 30aTRIS (aR7e8  LABE[ER
Tanatior ey 14,234 - f1345 (18324 bR
Interests in saociates and jont vertues e LA ITE - 1553B40 B8 15856422
Adeditiona’ b non-gurment aasets 31,605, 106 23,588 - ARz - Nawim

o
113
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical infarmation

The following table pressnts the Group’s consolidated revenue under IFRSs by geographical location
for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, respectively:

Year ended 31 Decombaer 2014

Hl;ng Karlg.
Macsa and Fuain Parific
Taiwan #nd othens
RME'000 RMBTO

Sales b exiemal castomen
and taty! reverue 58,003,280 6,188,285 11,304,062 2,338,397 5.452,765 5598571 105,844,322

Year ended 31 December 2013

Nanh

Sl 1o eximmal siomes

and sty revenue 64,386,657 CARLETD " 1012 AREC  TARAM S04 L1 S1E N0

The Group’s main assets to earn income are the aircralt, most of which are registered in China.
According to the business demand, the Group needs to flaxibly allocate the aircraft to match the nead
of the route network. Therefore, the Group has no proper benchmark to distribute of these assets
according to regional information. Except for the aircraft, most of the Group's assets are located in
Chima.

Infermation about a majer customar

There was no revenus from transactions with a single customer amounting to 10% or mare of the
Group's revenue during the year (2013: Nil),

AlIR TRAFFIC REVENUE

Alr traffic revenue represents revenus fram the Group's airline operation business. An analysis of the
Group's air traffic revenve during the year is as follows:

2014 2013

RME' 000 RWABO00

Passenger 92,599,317 B, 726,79%
Cargo and mail 6,785,882 T.B76,269
101,385,199 #4603, 168

Al CHINA UMITED | Arvusl Repen 2014

EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)
oOoOooodn

225/304



EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)
oOoOooodn

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[Preparad wnder Wiernatonal Financal Hopoang Standsnd
Exariiad ir Taaminki e athorighe sdicatsed]

6 OTHER OPERATING REVENUE

2014 2013
RMB'000 RMBQO0
Aircraft engineering income 113,863 #3010
Ground service Income 930,733 745613
Government grants:
- Recognition of delemed income 149,601 121,377
= Qthers 999,052 689,105
Service charges on retum of unused flight tickes B71,254 Tad, 767
Cargo handling service income 124,399 101,688
Training sarvice income 40,429 28,970
Rental incame 133,936 131,913
Sale of matevials 11.780 17111
Import and export service income 34,828 34,422
Others 1.087.248 B4R 046
4,499,123 3577422

7  EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION COSTS

An analysis of the Group’s employes compensation costs, including the emoluments of directors and
supervigors, s as Tollows:

2014 2012

RMB'000 RMB'C00

Wages, salaries and other benefits 13,903,544 12569478
Retiremant bemafit costs:

= Contnbutions to defined contribution retirement scheme 1,611,377 1,445,155

- Early retirament benafits (13,992) 579

Share-based benefits (note 40) 11.835 7427

15,512,764 14,023,639
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PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

The Group's profit from operations is arrived at after charging/[ereditingl:

2014 2013
RME" D00 RMB 000
Depreciation 11,322,989 10,934,619
Armortisation:
- Lease prepayments 54,075 54,222
= |nwestmant properties 12,310 32,385
Impairment/reversal of impairmeant):
= Property, plant and equipment 35,105 222,438
- Ajroraft and flight equspment hald for sala 361,892 332,04
- |nwentories 1,740 19,048
- Accounts receivabla 2,675 17.929
= Prepaymants, deposits and other recervables [(490,970) 6,555
Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3%.510 140,141
Minimum lease payments under operating leases:
- Aircraft and flight equipment 4,536,641 4,006,096
= Land and buildings 866,533 7128925
Auditors’ remuneration:
= Aupedit relnted services 18,801 16,440
- Other services 527 -

FINANCE REVENUE AND FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of the Group's finance revenue and finance costs during the year is as follows:

Finance ravenus

2014 2013

RME 000 RMEB'000

Exchange gains, nat - 1.937.887
Interest income 219,270 323,188
Oihars 10,878 4,256
230,088 2,265,331
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?  FINANCE REVENUE AND FINANCE COSTS (Continued]

Finance costs

2014 2013

RMB'000 RMB 000

Interest on interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings 2,902,509 2,804 229
Interest an finance leases 503,374 383,787
Loss on interest rate dervative contracts, net an 1,634
Exchange |osses, net 340,290 -
3,766,546 389,602

Less: Interest capitalised | (485.823) [501,573)
3,300,723 2,688,089

The interest capitalisation rates during the year range from 0.77% to 6.55% (2013: 0.81% to 8.46%) per
annum relating to the costs of related borrowings during the year,

10 TAXATION
{a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss represents:

2014 23
RMB'000D RMB 00

Current income tax:
— Mainland China TT4,564 842, 654
~ Hong Kong and Macau 13,339 20.214
Ower-provision in respect of prior years (6,692) [B.178)
Dafecred incoma tax [note 25) {1,357} 39,440
TI9.854 903,132

Under the relevant Corporate Income Tax Law and regulations in the PRC, except for twe
branches which are taxed at a preferential rate of 15% (2013: 15%} and a subsidiary which is
axampted from the local income tax of Inner Mongolia Autonomaous Region from year 2013
o 2015, all group companies located in Mainland China are subject to a corporate income tax
rata of 25% (2013; 25%) during the yaar. Subsidiaries in Hong Kong and Macau are taxed at
corporate income tax rates of 16.5% and 12% (2013: 16.5% and 12%], respactively.

In respect of majority of the Group's cverseas airline activities, the Group has either obtained
gxemptions from owersess taxstion pursuant to the bilateral aviation agreements between the
overseas governments and the PRC governments, or has sustained tax losses in these overseas
jurisdictions. Accordingly, no provision for cverseas tax has been made for overseas airlings
activithes in the current and prior years.
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10 TAXATION (Continued)

{b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at applicable tax

rates:
2014 2013
RMBE" 000 RIABO0G
Prafit befare taxation 5,064,861 4,518,093
Motional tax on profit before taxation,
calewlated at the rates apphcable to
profits in tho countries concorned 1,266,215 1,129,523
Tax rate differential in forelgn jurisdictions {66,149) {79,531)
Tax affect of share of profits less lossas of
aasociates and point ventures (218,462) [205.697)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 23,313 24,474
Tax effect of non-taxable income 1B3,475) (49,791
Deductiblo termporary differences and
tax losses not recognised &4, 294 228,275
Utilisation of tax losses not recognised in prios yaars 13,154) {4,440
Utilisation of deductible temporary differences
not recognised in prior years {73,207 [121,%04)
Effect of prior years” recognised taxable temporary
differences written-back during the year - {15,599
Effect of the reversal of impairment of prepayments,
deposits and other receivables that was recognised
as parmanent differences in previous years [122,629) -
Chmr-pravision i pror years (6,692) 18,178)
Others - 5,000
Actual 1ax expense 779,854 03,132
Effective tax rate 15.4% 20,0%
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11 DIRECTORS' AND SUPERVISORS' REMUNERATION

Directors' remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 78 of Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 822), with reference to section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), for the year ended 31 December 2014 are as lollows:

Exerutvn direcien
Saeg Priyieg [Aopeinted £ 21 May 21007 = m 15 1] . e
_FinCrg 1l - 7] 54 [ - il
by 183 - 175
Nor-eaeeutive direcens
(i Jarjiarg Appomted 09 28 Loy 104) - # 4 1 - L]
Waeg Changthun [Resigred o 1T Jaseary 1014 - - - - + M
'Mrg "fnia.'g - N - - - 3
Co Janmioen - E £ 3 a i
Fing Gang iAppomnted on 28 Augest 2004} - 1] i1 ki - 530
Joha Robert Sosar Ropoimad oe 22 May 2014) - e £ = X H
S 5o Cheang, - - - ‘ " '
51 Ve [Revigeed on 10 July Z0W - 2 < x _ A
Chesmopher Dule Fratt Resicnd 0n 14 March 214 - . - - - -
1% 5] w - b
Incfapendent nat-anscabie diecten
Fu Yarg 1 - x - = 13
Vi Yazhorg {11] - - 5 3 1]
Pri K g - . . - - -
Ta O Enmg, Semony m - - - = k1]
Lx] - - - - ™
Sapenvivan
Thau Feag S = s - " .
Yoz Wagan - kL 1§ 5 - 53
L gl . 5 5 = < -
He Crackan = - . - H i
Sim Thes = 18 n & - b
- j1H 151 2 - bi]
m 154 14 4 - m
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11 DIRECTORS' AND SUPERVISORS" REMUNERATION (Continued)
Dietails of directors’ and supervisors' emeluments for the year ended 31 December 2013 are as follows:

Bz ey,
hewsng b
mhe i (aomere) Ll
” baruin
L]
Exscutive dirvctons
Cai Janjang - A I B - 1034
g e a o L8 bl
- £S5 120 16 L

Nor-zsetutve drecten
Wang firnang - - - - - -
San Yade - E E - = =
Caq Jaesiong - - - - - -
(hignphe: Dl Pz - . - . -
St S Caaune, b - - - - - -
Induparsiant noe-sxenutive denctons
Li Shgary fesoned om 29 Ccober X1H) B - - - - E]
fi'fasg o - - - - 100
Han Fangyring Pessyred on 25 Doter 2013 B - - - - i
Y Yushong | = - - - 10
Pan Niaojarg (Apponted on 2 Ocobar 13) n - - - - "
To 0 g, Sivon ppsrnd on 19 Octoer 201D all = : o x L)

L - - - 40
Supsniiony
Thou Fng - - - - -
%o Yerpr - EL 10 2 m
Su Bhivong Rired on 2 Ociober 3013 - Pt L} ] - L
L1 Gingfin - - - - - -
Thang Hutewn Rrsgned oe 29 Deteber 2101 - - - =
Hie Crsslar Aopoirned on 79 Cetober 2113 - - - = =
HrM-?pa:J‘-u'mi?{_ﬁrhh p.uk ] - o 5 ! - 4

- 50 1 104 - e
4 1,008 14 0 = s
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11 DIRECTORS' AND SUPERVISORS' REMUNERATION (Continued)

11} Song Zhiyong s both a director and the chisl axecutive of the Compary for the yaar anded 31 Decembar
2014,

12 Certain Directors have been grarted SARs in respect of their services to the Group, further details of which
ana set out in note 40 1o tha financisl statements.

12 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Mare of the dirsctars (2013: nona), whase emaoluments are reflscted in the note 11, was amang the
five highest paid individuals in the Group for 2014, The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
five (2013: five) individuals during the year are as follows:

2014 23
RMB'000 RMBO000

Basic salaries, housing benefits. other allowasnces
and benefits in kind 11,166 11.37%
Discretionary banuses 181 305
11,347 11,684

The amoluments of the five (2013: five) individuals with the highest emaluments are within the
following bands:

2014 23

Mumber of Number af

individuals individuat

HK$2,500,001 1o HK$3,000,000 5 3
HKE3.000,000 to HKE3 500,000 i 2
5 5

During the year, Mr. Pan Xiaojiang had waived the remuneration, and there was no other amrangement
undles which a director, & supervisor or a chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year (2013: Nil).
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13 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

14

15

122

The profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company includes a profit of RMB2 848,749,000
in 2014 (2013: RMBZ,191,536,000} (note 3%[a)) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of
the Company.

2014 2013
RME'000 RMBDO0

Amount of consofidated profit atiributable

to equity sharsholders dealt with in the

Company's financial statemanis 2,514,291 1.B87 664
Final dividends from subsichiaries, associates and joint

ventures attributable to the profits of the previous financial
_ year, approved and paid during the year | 334,478 303,670

The Company’s profit for the year (note 3%a) 2 848,749 2,191,535

Details of dividends paid and payable to equity shareholders of the Company are set out in note 39(d).

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2014 was basad on
the profit attribwtable to ordinary equity sharcholders of the Company of RMB3.B17 million [2013:
RMB3,264 million) and the weighted average of 12,294,896,740 ordinary shares {2013; 12,294,184,525
ordinary shares) in issue during the year, as adjusted to reflect the weighted average number
of treasury shares held by Cathay Pacific Airways Limited ("Cathay Pacific”) through reciprocal
shareholding,

The Group hod no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during both yeors.

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The components of other comprehensive income do not have any significant tax offect for the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013,
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Group

Wiy st Toul
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Company
Mol
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Dwring the year, the Group recognised an impairment loss of approximataly RMB3S million relating
to aircraft and flight equipment (2013: RMB222 million). The recoverable amounts of these impaired
aircraft and flight equipment are the higher of their fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s aircraft and flight equipment, bulldings and machinery with
an pggregate net book value of approsimately RMBA0,001 million [2013: RMB35,%04 million) were
pledged to secure cartain bank loans of the Group (note 35(a)).

The aggregate net book value of aircraft held under finance leases included in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group and the Company amounted to approximately RMB58,673 millien (2013:
RME48,401 million) and RMB42,275 million (2013: RMB45,142 million) (note 34), respectively.

Az at 31 Decomber 2014, the Group was in the process of applying for the title cenificates of cartain
buildings with an aggregate net book value of approximately RME1 %45 million (2013: RMB2,103
million). The Directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group is entitfed to lawfully and
validly occupy and use the above-mentioned buildings, and therefore the sforesaid matter did not have
any significant impact on the Group's financial position as at 31 December 2014,

17 LEASE PREPAYMENTS

Company

2014 2013
RMB 000 RMB'D00

Cost
As at 1 January 2,611,034 2474210 1,846,624 1791173
Additions 484,499 138,743 103,856 57.390
Disposal (32,093) (1.939) (55.789) (1.939)
As at 31 December 3,063,440 2,611,034 1,894,691 1,845,624

Ageumulated amortisation

As at 1 January {407,657} (353.715) [292,50%) [253,526)
Amortisation for the year (54,075) (54,222 (37,330) (39,263}
Disposal 31,950 280 11,198 280
Ag at 31 Decambuer (429,782} {407 &57) (318,841) [292.509)

MNet carrying amount
As at 31 December 2,633,658 2,203,377 1,576,050 1,554,115
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17

18
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LEASE PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

The Group's lease prepayments in respect of land are held under long-term leases and located in
Mainland China,

As at 31 Decambar 2014, the Group's land use rights with an aggragata net book valua of
approximately RMB3T million (2013: RMB38 million} were pledged to secure certain bank loans of the
Group (note 35(a)k.

Az at 31 December 2014, the Group was in the process of applying for the title certificates of certain
land acquired by the Group with an aggregate net book value of approximately RMBAO4 million (2013:
RMB5SS million). The Directors af the Company are of the view that the Group is entitled 1o Lawfully
and validly occupy and use the above-menticned land, and therefore the aforesaid matter did not have
sny significant impact on the Group's financial position as at 31 December 2014,

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties are subsagquently measured at the cost mathod.

2014 2013

RMB‘ 000 RMB000
Cost
As at 1 January 387,444 338,414
Addition 449,674 48 852
As at 31 Dacember B37,140 387 464
Accumulated amartization
As at 1 January (141,175 [108, 790
Amortisation for the year {12,310) {32 3B5)
A5 at 31 December (153,485 [141,175)
Met carrying amount
Ag al 31 December 483,655 244,291

As at 31 December 2014, among the carrying amount of investmeant properties, there are RMBA0O
million (2013: RMBA1T million) relating to land use rights held under a madium term lease.
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19 INTANGIBLE ASSET

Company

2013 2014 2013

RMEB'000 RME 000 RME 000

As at 1 January 54,524 59.214 30,507 35217

Additions - 18 - =
Reduction upon admission of

new Star Alliance members (17,645} 4,710 (17,665) [4,710)

As a1 31 Decembaer 34,859 54,524 12,842 30,507

The Group's intangible asset represents admission rights of the Company and Shenzhen Airlines to Star
Alliance which is stated at cost less impairment losses and has an indefinite useful life.

20 GOODWILL

2014 203
RMB'000 RMWBO00

As 8t 31 December:
- Cost 1,276,846 1,274 848
= [mpairment (176,891) [176,891)
Met carrying amount 1.099.975 1.09%9.975

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been mainly allocated to the following cash-
generating units for impairment testing:

# Ajr China Cargo cash-geénerating unit
. Shenzhen Airlines cash-generating unit
Air China Cargo cash-generating unit

The Group sccrued full impairment provision for goodwill sllocated impairment to the Air China Carge
in 2011,
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21
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GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)
Shenzhen Airlines cash-generating unit

The recoverable ameunt of the Shenthen Alrlines cash-genarating unit wai determined based on &
walee in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering a three-year
pariod approved by senior menagement. The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 10%
(2013: 10%) and cash flows beyond the three-year period were extrapolated using a growth rate of 2%
by reference to the long-term average growth rate.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation far 31 December 2074 and 31 December 2013,
The following describes each key assumption on which management has based its cash flow projections
to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross mangns - The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted gross
margins is the average gross margins achieved in the year immediately before the budget year,
incressed for expected efficiency improvements, and expected market development.

Discount rates - The discount rates used reflect spacific risks relating to the relevant units.
With regard to the assessment of value in use of the Shenzhen Alrlines cash-generating unit, the

Diractors of the Company belisve that no resscnably possible change in any of the above key
assumphion would cause the carying value of the unit to materlally exceed iis recoverable amount.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted investrments, at cost 19,643,911 17.971.735
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21 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 are as follows:
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' The Englsh names of these companies are direct translatiens of thew Chinese names
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21 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally
affected the results for the year ended 31 December 2014 or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group as at 31 December 2014. Ta give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the Directors, result in particular of excessive length,

The follewing table lists cut the information relating to Shenzhen Airlines and Adr China Cargo, the
subsidiaries of the Group which have material non-contralling interest (MCH. The summarised financial
information presented below represents the amounts before any inter-company elimination,

2014 2013
Shenzhen Air China Shemzhen Air Chirma
Airdines Cargo Airlines Cargn
RMEB000 RMB'000 RMB'D00 RME'000

NCI percantage 49% 49% 4% 45%
Current assets 3,242,187 2,158,168 295161 2183701
Mon-curent assats 40,722,584 10,936,980 35,379,227 B175,604
Currant liabilities (18,126,481}  (3,565,465) (17,302,867 18,265,177
Mon-curment liabdities (21,338,885} (6,709,104}  (1B.074,771] {1.341,585)
Met assets 4,497,425 2,820,379 3,953,385 752,473

- Egpuity contributed ta equity akarehaldar

of the subsidiary 4,457,500 2,820,377 3.914 480 752473
= Eqpuiity contributed to the NCI
at the subsidiary leval 41,925 - 38,905 -

Camying amount of NCI 2,226,100 1,381,986 1,957,000 e M2
Revenue 22,891,427 %.263,321 21,637,583 8,102,114
Profit/ioss) for the year 747,810 &7,78% 228,144 [348.414)
Total comprehensive income/axpanses) 719,220 67,906 BEE 04 (3494103
Total comprehensive income/erpenses)

allocatad ta NC) 381,818 33,274 435,142 {171,212]
Capital contribution by NCI - FE0,000 = =
S ClL fic S (730 - B L —
Cash flows from operating activities 3,540,033 (1.083,733) 3,381,728 426018
Cash flows from Investirg activities (1,532,503) 960,831} (3,031,803 {4,761 236]
Cagh flows from financing activities [2,011,338) 1,962,257 (742,893 4 629,667
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22 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Company
2014 2013

RMB 000 RWEBE 000

Listed shares in the PRC, at cost - - 163,477 163 477

Unlisted invessments, at cost - = s02.671 602 671
Share of net assets

= Listed shares in the PRC 542,058 512,031 - -

— Listed shares in Hong Kong 7,186,996 9,929 458 - =

- UWnlisted investmonts 1,297,295 1,265,161 - -

Goodwill 2,714,352 2,914,352 - -

11,940,701 14,421,032 Tab, 148 746,148

Less: impaiment 46,842 a4 842 - -

As at 31 December 11,893,859 14,574,170 Tob, 148 166,148

Market value of listed shares 16,858,414 15,363,884 1,129,968 1,151,856

5 iy
o
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22 INTERESTS IN ASSQCIATES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal associates as at 31 December 2014 are as follows:
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- The equity interests of these assocates are held indirectly through certain subsidiaries of the Company,

% 19.3% of the Group's equity Intorest in CNAF Is hald dfrnq‘lr Ir'.- the Cmpmr, and the rn-rnq'l'l.ing 4.2% s
fgld incdirectly through certain subsidianes of the Company.

Tha English names of these companios are direct translations of thair Chinesa namas.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally
affectad the results for the year ended 31 December 2014 or formed a substantial portion of the net
assets of the Group as at 31 December 2014, To give details of other sssociates would, in the opinion
of the Directors, result in particular of excessive length.
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22 INTERESTS IN ASSQCIATES (Continued]

Summarised financial information of Cathay Pacific, the only individually material associate of the
Group, and & reconciliation to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed below:

Cathay Pacific
2014 2013

RMB'00D RMB'000

Gross amounts of the associate's

Current assets 26,401,111 30,808 422
Mon-current assets 109,264,017 104,088,990
Cusrant liabilities {36,099,479) (32,060,100
Mon-currant liabilities [58,680,373) (53,294,601)
Equity 40,905,276 49,542,711
= Equity contributed 1o equity sharshaolders of the associate 40,801,934 49,444 433
= Equity contributed to NCI of the associate 103,342 98,279
Revenue 83,473,212 80,240,493
Profit for the year 2,717,048 2.3118,960
Other comprehansie (expense)/income [10,471,265) 3,832,992
Tetal comprehensive (expenselfincome {7.754,217) 6,151,952
Dividend received from the associate 241,976 129,859
Reconciled 1o the Group’s interests in the associate
Gross amounts of net assets of the associate 40,801,934 49 444 432
Group's effective interest 29.99% 29.99%
Group's share of net assets of the assoclate 12,234,500 14,828,385
Elimination of reciprocal shareholding {5,049,504) (4,898,897)
Goodwill 2,701,547 2,701,547
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements 9,888,563 12,631,055

Aggregate information of associates that. are not individually material:

2013

RMB'000

Aggregate carrying amount of individually immaterial associates

in the consalidated financial statements 2,005,294 1,943,135
Aggregate amountd of the Graup's share of thase associates'

Prodit from continuing operations 164,107 223,737

Other comprehensive income/{expense] 27141 (1, 174)

Total comprehensive moome 191,248 222,563

i
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23 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 23
RME OO0 RMB" 000 RMB'000 RMEBT00
Unlisted imestment, at cost - - 951,879 B&S 479
Share of net assets 1,386,218 1.277.722 - -
Goodwill 6,510 6,510 - -
1,392,728 1,284,232 P51.87% B&5ATF

Particulars of the joint ventures of the Group at 31 December 2014 are as follows:
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The English names of these companies are the direct translations of thelr Chinese names.
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23 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES [Continued]

The Directors of the Company are of the opinion that na joint ventures are Individually material to the
Group. Aggregate information of joint wentures that are not individually martial listed as follows:

Group
2014 2013
RME"000 RMBO00
Aggregate carrying amount of individually immaterial joint

wantures in the consalidated financial statemants 1,392,728 1,284,232

Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of those joint ventures’
Profit fram continuing operations 120,11 175,972
Cther comprehensive incomafexpensa) 11B [1,003)
Total comprehensive Income 120,309 174 949

24 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013

RMB'000 RMB'00 RME"D00 RMEB'D00

Avallable-for-sale Investments

= Linlisted 36.725 36,325 22,110 22,110
- Listed 51,454 9.400 - -
BEATY 45,925 22,110 22,110
o
PR
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DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as follows:

Defered tax assats:
As at 1 January
Ci'la-rgr to profit or lass (note 10}

Gross deferned tax assets as ot 31 December
Deferred tax labslities:

Az gt 1 January

Charge to profit or loss (note 10}
Recognised in other comprebenaive ingome

Gl_w !:k_h:_rrn-d fax hbil:r._h:-s asat N De:en_bgr

Met deferred tax assels as at 31 December

3,263,245
313,348

3,576,594
2,014,407

31,9
10,464

2,336,862

1,230,732

U d
b

RMB'000

2,849,703
413543

3,283,246

1,561,424
452,983

2,014,407

1,248,839

2,206,620
(105,148)

2,101,472

244,745
1114,548]

130177

1,971,295

2,024,156
182 464

2,206,620

270,441
34,304

244,745

1,941,875

At CHINA LUMITED | Arnusl Repen 3014

EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)
oOoOooodn

247/304



EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)
oOoOooodn

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ﬁ

[Preparad wnder Wiernatonal Financal Hopoang Standsnd
Exariiad ir Taaminki e athorighe sdicatsed]

25 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

The principal companents of the Group's and the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are as
follows:

Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

RMB"000 AMB000 RMEB 000 RMEB000

Deferred tax assets:
Ditferences in value of property,

plamt and equipmant B4,62% 74,159 B4, 629 74,159
Provigions and accruals 2,542,263 2,180,112 1,659,635 1,440,161
Unreaksed profit of intra-group transactions 41,658 - - -

Unrealised loss on dervative

financial Instruments - 955 - Q55
Impairment 511,511 F78,a568 349,820 661,793
Deductibde loss 389,145 - - -
Govermnment grants and subsidies 7.388 29,552 7,388 29,552
Gross deferred tax assets 3,576,594 3263246 2,101,472 2,206,620
Deforred tax liabilitics:
Unrealised exchange gain 129.591) (45, 744) {29,591) {45, 744)
Changes in fair value of available-for-zale

linancial assets (10,4564) - - -
Depreciation allowance in axcess

of the related depreciation (2,111,098) (1,822 708) (100, 585) [198.99%)
Grhers {185,709) {145.953) = -
Gross deferred tax liabilities (2,336,862) (2,014,407 {(130177) (244, 745)
Mot doforrod tax assets 1,239,732 1,248,839 1,971,295 1,961,875

Dafarrad tax assats not recognisad are as follows:

2013

REMB 000

Tax losses 2,248,480 2,253 267
Deductible temporary differences 524,277 487,758
2,892,757 2,941,025

==
LA qar
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26

27

138

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

The Group has no tax losses arising from operations outside Mainland China (2013: Nil). The
Group has tax losses arising from the operation in Mainland China of RMBZ B%2,757.000 (2013:
RMB2.941,025.000) that will expire in five financial years from the year of incurrence for offsetting
against future taxable profits. Deferrad tax assets have not been recognited in respect of thess
losses which relate to subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some years and it is not considered
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available in the near future against which the tax losses
can be wtilised.

There are no income tax conseguences attaching to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
sharehalders.

AIRCRAFT AND FLIGHT EQUIPMENT HELD FOR SALE

Aircraft and flight equipment held for sale represent aircraft and the related flight equipment to retire
in the next 12 months and are measured at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less
costs to sall.

Group

Company
2014
RMB 000

2014
RMEBE'DDO

2013
RMEB000

2013
RMEBEQ00

Ajrcraft and flight equipment held for sale 440,028 97 A 460,028 530,881

An impairment boss charged of spprocimately RMB361.892,000 and RMB3461,892,000, for the Group
and the Company respectively, was made against these aireraft and flight equipment by reference
to the contracted selling prices for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: RMB332,014,000 and
RMB332,014,000, respectively).

INVENTORIES

An analysis of inventosies as at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
RMB'0D0 RME 000 RMB'00D RMB"Q00
Spare parts of flight equipment 901,512 848,828 544,514 532317
Catering supplies 100,665 104,750 44,839 57,507
Ordsnary eguiprment 22,354 34 204 14,843 17,647
Otthars 75,648 56,833 22982 12,374
1,100,179 1,044 817 633178 619,845
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[Preparad wnder Wiernatonal Financal Hopoang Standsnd
Exariiad ir Taaminki e athorighe sdicatsed]

28 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

RMB“ 000 RMBE D00 RMEB" 000 RME 000
Accounts recenable 2,903,444 2,935,838 1,937,140 3,250,979
Impaimant (6%,334) (74.671) 154,009) 158,040)

2,834,130 2,881,147  1,883131 3,192,939

The Group normally allows a credit period of 30 to %0 days to its sales agents and other customors
while some major customers are granted a credit period of up to six months or above. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact
that the Group's accounts raceivable relate to a large number of diversified customers, thers is
no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancemeants over its atcounts recevable balances. Aceounts receivable are non-interest-bearing.

The ageing analysis of the accounts receivable as at the end of the reporting period, net of provision
for mpairment, is as follows:

Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013
RMB D00 RMIB D00 RMEB 000 RMB000

Within 30 days 2,262,237 2,245,022 1,435,628 1,311,589
31 10 60 days 263.514 259,966 71,403 ason2
&1 10 90 days 110,406 120,542 241,155 352,688
Chver 90 days_ 197,973 235,637 134,943 1,178,550

2,834,130 2881167 1,883111 3,192,939
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28 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

The movement in the provision for impairment of accounts receivable during the year, including bath
specific and collective loss components, is as follows:

Group Coampany

2014 2013 2014 2013

RMB D00 RMB'0D0 RMB'000 RIAB"DOC

As at 1 January 74,671 58,877 58,040 21,778
Impairmant losses recognised 5,892 20,820 5,482 18,241
Amount reversed (3.217) (2,891} (2,725) {1.603)
Amopunt written off (8,031) (2071} (6,788) {574)
Exchange realignment 19 (B} - -
As at 31 December 69,334 4471 54,009 58,040

At 31 December 2014, the Group's and the Company's accounts receivable of RMB&1,905,000 (2013:
RMB&4,382,.000) and RMB46,530,000 (2013; RMEBST.751,000) respectively were impaired and fully
provided for. The individually impaired accounts recaivable related to customers that were in financial
difficulties and the probability to recover these receivables & remote.

The ageing analysis of the accounts recelvable that are neither individually nor collectively considered
to be impaired is as follows:

Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013
RME D00 RME D00 RMB'000 REAB000

Meither past due nor impaired 2,154,027 2,047,645 1,327,419 1,114,213
Less than 3 months past: due 315,703 311,549 254,343 633,847
Moethan Imonthspastdue. 154,506 2205700 91,475 1143282

2,624,235 2579564 1,673,237 291,338

Recaivables that were neither past dus nor impaired relats to a large number of diversified customars
for whom thare was no recent history of default.

Racaivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent customars that
have & good track record with the Group, Based on past experience, the Directors of the Company are
of the opinion that no provision for impairmeant is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable,
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.
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29 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

An analysis of prepayments, deposits and other receivables as at the end of the reporting period, net
of provision for impairment, is as follows:

Company
2014 2013

RAB 000 RMEB000

Prepayments

Advances and others 394,389 295,854 257,031 194,392

Manufacturers” cradits 1,375,606 1.414,.371 1,323,429 1,407 806

Prepaid airncralt operating lease rentals 449,412 3g4,108 302,547 200,431
2,319,407 2,094,333 1,883,007 1.802 629

Depaosits and other receivables 2,030,949 1.824.132 1,631,726 1.560.480

4,250,378 3,918,445 3,514,733 33463109

The movements in the provision for impairment of prepayments, deposits and other receivables are as
follows:

Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013
RMEB'DDD RMB' 000 RME" D00 RMB'D00

As at 1 January 2,888,567 2,888,674 822 -
Impairment losses recognised 273 8,904 - 822
Amount reversed [491,243) {2.345) - -
Amount written off (822) [&.247) {822) -
Exchange realignment 15 219 -

Az at 31 December 2,396,790 2.888,567 - 822

At the end of sach reporting period, the Group would assess the collectability of the receivables
and provision will ba made if necessary. For those receivablas which are individually significant and
the possibility of recoverable is remote, full impairment will be provided, Should further information
obtained in subsequent periods indicate the receivables could be collected partially or entirely, the
provision would be partislly or entirely reversed accordingly.

As at 31 Decamber 2014, the gross amount due from Shenzhen Huirun Investment Co., Ltd. {“Huirun®)
was RMB1,124,325,000 (31 December 2013: RMB1,520,700,000) which had been provided the provision
of RMB1,075,182,000 {31 December 2013: RMB1,520,700,000). The provision of RMB445,518,000 was
received/reversed during 2014, Considering the additional interest expente of RMBY2,853,000 accrued
which offset the receivable from Huirun, the total impact charged for 2014°s profit and loss was
RMB352, 645,000,

As at 31 December 2014, the gross amount due from Shenzhen Airlines Property Development
Ca., Lid. {"Shenzhen Property”] snd its subsidisries was RMB&5S0,B19,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB&YS.819,000). Full provisions for the above receivables were made in prior years. In 2014, the
impairment af RMB45,000,000 was reversed upan receipt of RMBA5,000,000 repayment from Shenzhen

Propery.
S

]
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30 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The Group
2014 23
Ansets Liabilities Agsels Liabilities
RMB'000 RMEB D00 RMB 000 RMAB'OO0
Interast rate Swaps 1761 .Mz 2.825 24,070
Listed equity securities 10,773 - 8_5_25 -
12,534 7.712 11.350 24070

The Company

2013
Liabilities Assots Liabalities

RMB*D00 RMB*D00 RMB000

Interest rate swaps - - - ERAE

The above financial assets and liabilities are accounted for as held-for-trading financial instruments and
any fair value changes are recognised in the profit or loss.

The fair value of interest rate swaps as at the end of the reporting period was estimated by using the
Rendlemen-Barter model, taking into account the terms and conditions of the derivative contracts. The
major inputs used in the estimation process include volatility of shert term interest rate and the LIBOR
curve, which can be obtained from observable markets.

181 AR CHINA LIMITED | Annusl Repen 2014

253/304



EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)
oOoOooodn

[Preparad wnder Wiernatonal Financal Hopoang Standsnd
Exariiad ir Taaminki e athorighe sdicatsed]

31 PLEDGED DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

Group Company

2014 2013 2014 23
RMB'000 RMB'T00 RME'T00 RMB'DE

Time depoasts with banks and
other financial Institution 4,842 264 B,745,829 2,045, 000 4400317
Less: Fledlgled dﬂmmu iﬂ? { (74,570) .D'-iE.-.HiﬂJ] | il {I?H.?Hf].
Mon-pledged deposits 4,767,694 8,199,982 2,045,000 3,738,000
Cash and bank 4,892,293 £,541,848 1,213,265 1,984,189
Cash and cash eguivalents 9,659,987 14,741,830 3,258,265 5,924,189
Motes:

i Az at 31 December 2014, the Group’s and the Company’s deposits with CNAF, an associste of the
Group, amourted to RMB1,%88 million and RMB1.472 million, respectivaly (2013 RMB2,126 midlion
and RMB1,926 milllon, respectively).

" Details of pledged daposits are as follows:

Plodged dapotits againat:
- Aircraft opetating eases 57.553 L L] - -
= Hank loan inole 35061 - Gh3 T - 063317
= UIar 17.017 15.5%5 - -
74,570 Td5 547 - 653,317
o
r
& wa
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31 PLEDGED DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS [Continued)

{b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation te cash generated from operations:
203

RNB000

Cash flows from cperating activities

Profit before taxation 5,064 861 4,518,093
Adjustments for:
Shara of profits less losses of associates and joint wontures (873,849 (B22.787)
Exchange gairs, net 380,290 {1.937.867)
Intarast income {219.210) (323,166
Financo costs 2,940,062 2,688,089
Changes of fair value on financial asscts
and financial Hakslities, net n 1,646
Dopreciation 11,322 989 10,936,619
Impairment of property, plant and équipmant 35,105 22X A3E
Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment, nat 33,937 137, 7B
Amorigation of lease prepayments 54,075 54,222
Amonsation of investmen] properties 12,310 32385
Impairment of aireraft held for sale 381.8%2 334
Lessss on dispasal of aircraty held for sale 5573 2,360
mpairment of mveniones 1.740 19,748
Impairment of accounts recenvable 2675 17,929
[Reversal of impalrmentlimpairment of prepayments,
deposits and other receivables [4%0,%70) &858
(Imereasel/decrease in deposits lor alreraft
unhcler operating beases (%6, 963) 17,164
(Imcreaselfdecrease in nveniorkes [57,302) 40,583
Decreasef{increase) i accounts recevable 24 362 1134,953]
(Imcreaseldecrease in bills receivable [24) 1,122
Dwecrease in prepayments, deposits and other receivables 159,059 100.45%
Decreased{increase) in amount due from the
ultimate holding company ER. 338 (16,3700
Increase i othar current assets (1,274,059) (1,092,387
Increase in air traffic liabilties 169,358 584,461
Increase in accounts payable 636,564 §70.401
Increasel{decraase) in bills payable 150,000 {1.503)
{Decreaselfincrease i other payables and accrualks (249,%05) 849,127
{Decreaselfincroase n amount due to
tha ultenate holding company [15,352) 1.759
Inorease in provision for magor overhauls 237,107 537,482
Decrozse in provision for carly retirement benefit obligations [16,121) {11,639
(Decrease]fincriease o deferred income [481,395) 317554
Ducroass in ong-tenm payables [54,217) (54.198)
Cash generated from operations 18,052,301 18,001,555

{c) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group entered into several finance lease arrangements in respect of
property, plant and equipment with a total capital value at the inception of the leases of
approximately RMB10,674 million (2013; RMBS, 394 million),

144 At CHINA LUMITED | Arnusl Repen 3014
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32 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
The ageing analysis of the accounts payable as at the end of the reporting pericd s as follows:

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013

RMB'000 EMB'0 RMEB' D00 RMB'00

Within 30 days 5,507,172 1,315,999 3,544 404 4,923,028
31 to 60 days 789,788 826,040 550,864 803,250
&1 to 90 days 1,386,348 785,549 1,244,954 750,21
Cver 90 days 2,125,613 1,421,947 1,849, 485 1,155,198

7788927 10,349,535 7,189,711 630,747

The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and have normal credit terms of 90 days.

33 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

An analysis of other payables and accrusls as at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Graup Campany

2014 2013 2014 2003
RMB'000 BEMB* 000 RME"D00 RMEB'D0H0

Accrueed salanes, wages and banafits 1,814,534 2,442,395 711,958 1,395,292
Receipts in advance for

employee residence 1,874,773 1,882,580 = =
Accrued operating expenses 1,308,280 1,304,706 Abs 934 833 452
Buginass tax, customs dutios

and levies tax payable 346,242 356,032 206,508 214,658
Deeposits recaived from sales agents 464,490 599,758 394,872 375,279
Due to a non-controlling sharehalder

of a subsidiary 100,000 207,787 - -
Intarest payable 459,180 J12.165 574,389 631,840
Land lzase payable - 207,734 - -
Current portion of deferred income

ralated to the frequant-fiyer programme 890,322 581,455 412,732 446,955
Curront portion of deferred income

related to government grants 76,588 122,218 76,588 122218
Current portion of long-term payables 55.414 51.478 - -
Provision for stall housing benelits 36,062 83,0562 88,062 88,062
Chthers 2,438,087 2,229,287 3,583,170 1,006,708

10,535,972 10,785,877 6,515,213 5.114 462

%
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34 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

The Group and the Company have chligations under finance lease agreements expiring during the
years from 2016 to 2026 (2013; 20156 to 2025) in respect of aircraft. An analysis of the future minimum
lease payments under these finance leases as at the end of the reporting period, together with the
prasent values of the nat minimum |saze paymants which are principally denominated in foraign
currencies, is as follows:

The Group

Prosent

values of
Minimuem minimum Mirnimam
laase lease lenge ease
payments payments paymanta payTants
2014 2014 23 2013

3
1]

RME'DGD RME'000 RME000 RMWETO0

Amounts repayable

- Within 1 ymar 5,311,435 4,751,714 4,228 660 3855317
- After 1 year out within 2 years 5,304,020 4,803,263 4,328,448 3,799,168
= At 2 yems bul within 5 yoars 13,108,105 11,971,446 11,764,859 11,026,088
- After 5 yEATS 15,200,907 14,465 587 11,421,534 10,747 45%

Total minimum finance lease payments 18,924,458 35,992,012 21,743 50 29.832.032

Loss: Amounts representing finance charges (2,932 448) (1,971,469

Present value of minimum lease payments 35,792,012 29,832 03z

Less: Portion classified as current liabdlitiss (4,751,714} 13.859,317]

Mon-Current porton 31,240,298 25972115

The Group's finance leases were secured by mortgages over certain of the Group's airoraft, which had
an agoregate net carmying amount of approximately AMBSE,473 millian {2013: RMBAE 401 millian) (note
16).

Az at 31 Decembar 2014, the obligations under finance leases of the Group with an aggregate amount
of U55135 million (equivalent to AMBA2S million) were guaranteed by an associate of the Group.

186 AN CHINA LIMITED | Annusl Repen 2014
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34 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2014, there were 156 (2013: 124) aircrafe under finance lease agreements of the
Group. Under the terms of the leases, the Group has the option to purchase these aircraft, at the
end of or during the lease terms, at market value or at the price as stipulated in the finance lease
agreaments. The effective borrowing rates during the current year ranged from -1.43% to &.55%
{2013:-1.37% ro 4.55%) per annum.

Tha Company

Prosent

walues of
Minimum i mam M inémum
lense fease leass

payments payments paymanis
2014 2014 2013

RMEQ00 RME000

Amouwtits repayable:

= Within 1 yaar 4,333,059 3972048 3812876 3,556,549
— After 1 year but within Z years 4,320,099 3,994,868 3,922 848 3,473,243
= After 2 pears bul within 5 years 10,270,639 9,522,598 10,520,434 10,097 739
— After 5§ years 10,878,349 10,377,685 | 10,015,327 9.453,530

Total minimim finance lease paymants 29,802,194 27,857,159 28,371,505 27,001,081

Less: Amounts representing finance charges (1,934,997) (1,370,444

Present value of minimum lease papments 27,867,199 27,001,041

Less: Portion classified as current liabilities (3,972,048) (3,556,549

Man-current portion 23,895,151 23,444,512

Certain finance lease arrangements comprise finance leases between the Company and certain of its
subsidiaries, and the corresponding baorrowings between such subsidiaries and commercial banks.
The Company has guaranteed the subsidiaries’ cbligations under those bank borrowing arrangements
and, sccordingly, the relevant assets and obligations are recorded in the Company's statement of
financial position to reflect the substance of the transactions. The future payments undar these finance
Izases have therefore been presented by the Company and the Group in the amounts that reflect the
payments under the bank borrowing arrangements betwesn the subsidiaries and commarcial banks.

The Company's finance leases were secured by mortgages over certain of the Company’s aircraft,
which had an aggregate net carrying amount af spproximately RMB48,275 million (2013: RMB45,142
millian] (note 16).
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35 [INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
RMEB 000 RME"000 RMB'000 RMBE000

Bank loans:
= Secured or guarantesd 31,278,087 265126%0 15595768 12,064,165
- Unsecured 24,488,414 30,057,932 17,559,262 21178912

55,766,501 56570622 33155030 33,243,077
Loans from CNAF

- Sacured = 20,000 = i3

- Unsacured _ 1715000 2,408,000 T
1,715,000 2.498.000 - =

Corporate bonds = unsecurad 20,834,120 22,700,000 19,000,000 22,000,000

78,315,621 81,758,422 52,155030 55243077

148 At CHINA LUMITED | Arnusl Repen 3014
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35 |INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013
RMB"000 RMB'DDD RMB 000 RWEBE 000

Bank loans repayable:

= Within 1 year 23,937,425 33334216 15542372 22,306,051
— After 1 year but within 2 years 5,997,305 4,330,402 3,318,518 2,006,738
= After 2 years but within 5 years 14,427,453 9.380,455 7,730,175 3,935,899
- Aftar 5 years 11,404,218 9,525,549 6,563,763 4,994 329

55,746,501 56,570,622 33,155,030 33,243,017
Levans from CWAF repayable:
= Within 1 year 1,715,000 2,468,000 - =

- After 1 yoar but within 2 years - 30,000 - -
= Aftar 2 years but within 5 years - - - -

1,715,000 2,478,000 - B

Corporate bonds:

= Within 1 year 3,640,000 3,700,000 3,000,000 3,000,000
- After 1 year but within 2 years - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
- After 2 years but within 5 years 10,694,120 3,500,000 9,500,000 3,500,000
- After § years &,500,000 12,500,000 &, 500,000 12,500,000

20,834,120 22700000 19,000,000 22,000,000

Total interest-bearing bank boans
and ather borrowings 78,315,621  B1,768622 52155030 55243077

Less: Partion classified as current liabilities (29,202 4258)  (39.502,216) (18,542,372) (25,304,051

Mon-current portion 49,023,196 42266406 33,612,658 29937026
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35 [INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

Further details of the bank loans, loans fram CMAF and corporate bonds at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

Group Company

2014 2013 014 2013
RMB'000 AMAE'D00 RME'D00 REE000

Bank loans and loans from CNAF

RME dancminated loans:
Foced interest rate renging from 0.00% to 7.20%
(2013 5.04% 1o 7.20%) per annum,
with final maturities threugh to 2016 4,420,294 3,593 689 - =

Floating interest rate ranging from 5.04% o 6.55%
[2013: 5.04% 1o B.45%) per annum,

with final maturities through 1o 2023 3,871,594 5,754,138 - -
Total RMB denominated bosns B,291.888 346,025 - -
USS denominated loans:

Fised irarest rate ranging from 2.80% to 4, 96%
[2013: 2.4% to 4 61%) per annum,
with final maturities through to 2019 2,221,482 1,451,672 1413102 403,857

Floating interest rate ranging from 0.77% w 6.05%

(2013 081K 1o b.09%) per annum,
with final maturities through 1o 2024 46,822,254 A5, 104, 200 31,576,051 32,674,473

Total US$ denominated loans 45,043,738 45 555,872 33,008,153 33078352

Euros denominated loans:
Fixed intarest rate at 4.38% (2013 4.36%) per annum,

with final maturities threugh ta 2014 145,877 164, 725 145,877 164,725
Total bank loans and lpans. from CHAF 57,481,500 a9 066,622 33155030 33243007
Corporate bonds

RME denominated loans:
Fuxiel intarest rate ranging lrom 3.48% o 5.60%
[2013: 3.48% 1o 5.30%) por annum,
with final maturities through to 2023 20,824,120 22700,000 19,000,000 22,000,000

Total intevest-bearng bank loans
and other barrowings T8, 315,421 81,748, 422 52,155,030 55,243,007

V50 At CHINA LUMITED | Arnusl Repen 3014
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35 |INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

The interast rates of RMB denominated loans are set and subject to change by the People’s Bark of
China.

The Group's bank leans and other loans of approximately RMB31.278 million as at 31 Decembar 2014
{£013: RMB26,403 million) were secured or guaranteed by:

{al Maorgages over certain of the Group's aircraft and flight equipment, buildings and machinery
with an aggregate net carrying amount of apprecimately RMEA0,001 million as at 31 December
2014 (2013: RMB38,906 million) (note 14); and land use rights with an agoregate carrying
amount of approximately RMB37 million as at 31 December 2014 (2013: RMB3R millian) (note

17); and

{b)  As at 31 Decembar 2014, there was no pledged time deposit to secure certain bank loan (2013:
RMB&43 million) (note 31{a)(i: and

lel There was no guarantee by any commercial banks os a1 31 December 2004 (2013: Nill, and

{d)  As at 31 Decernbar 2014, bank loans of the Group with an aggregate amount of ISS255 million
{equivalent to RME1,540 million) were guaranteed by an associate of the Group (31 December
201 3: US584 million (equivalent to RMBS522 million).

The Company's bank loans of approximately RMB15,5%4 million as at 31 December 2014 (2013:
RMBE12,064 million) were secured by:

{a) Maortgages over certain of the Company's aircraft and buildings with an aggregate net book
value of approximately RMB19.322 million as at 31 December 2014 (2013: RMB14.750 million};
and land use rights with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB31 million as at 31
December 2014 (2013: RMB32 millicn); and

it}  There was no guarantee provided by certain commercial banks as at 31 December 2014 (2013:
Mil); and

{ed  As at 31 December 2014, the Company provided guarantee to a subsidiary's bank loans
amounting to US5265 million {equivalent to RMBE1,4623 million) (31 December 2013: USSES
million [uquiva‘lnnt to RMB543 million}).

As at 31 December 2014, thera was no PRC state-owned banks provided counter-guarantees (2013:
Mill to one of the above-mentioned commereial banks.
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36 PROVISION FOR MAJOR OVERHAULS

Details of the movements in provision for major cverhauls in respect of aircraft and engines under
operating leases at the end of the reporting pericd are as follows:

Company

2014 2013

RMB'000 RIAB"DOC

As at 1 January 3,982,858 3.445.176 2,015,138 1,747,287
Provision for the year 1,306,053 1,452,951 BE74,536 648,347
Utilization during the year (1,048, 748) (916, 265) {724,38%) [380,49&)
As at 31 December 4,219,965 3,782 858 2,165,285 2,015,138

Less: Portion classified as current liabilities [85&,7ET) (579,378) {407.775) (358,397

Marn-cuirent partion 3,363,176 3,283,480 1,757,510 1,456,739

The amount of provision is estimated based on the costs of overhauls and actual flying hours/cycles of
sircraft and engines under operating leases. The estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis and
revised whenever appropriate.

37 LONG-TERM PAYABLES

An analysis of long-term payables at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2013

RMB'000

Mon-voting redeemable preferance shares of a subsidiary 7,710 114,692
Chthars 14,559 29,878
94,269 144,770

Less: Portion classified as current fiabilities {55,414} {51,698)
Mon-current portion 38,855 73,072
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38 DEFERRED INCOME

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013

RMB"000 RMBTD0 RMB 000 RMB000

Frequent-flyer programme [a) 2,635,316 3010284 2,224,541 1,973,153
Government grants (b) 631,798 705,566 574.3M 677 671
Gain on sale and lease back arrangements 55644 54,505 - -
Operating lesse rebates 13,326 16,746 - | -

3,336,106 3,7592.501 2,798,912 2,650,844

{8)  The movemnents in deferred income related to the Group's frequent-flyer pregramme during the
year are as follows:

Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

RMB"000 HME D00 RMB'000 RMB'000

As at 1 January 3591739 233432 2,420,108 1,848 956

Avrisirg during the year 2,041,335 1,727,556 1,745,577 1,474,108
Recognised as air traffic revenise

during the yaar (2,107 438) (1,089,249) (1,528,412} (924, 968)

Az at 31 Decembear 3,525,638 3,591,739 2,637,273 2,420,108

Lesz: Portion classifiod zs
currant habilties [B90,322) (581,455} (412,732} (446,935)

Non-currant portion 2,635,346 3,010,284 2,224,541 1973153

{b)  The movements in deferred income related to governmaent grants during the year are as follows:

Company
2013 2014 2013
HMB000 RME'000 RME' 000
As at | Januany B27.TE4 B2 442 TR 09 877,839
Additians 30,203 46,719 349 43121
Recognised in profit or loss [14%,601) [121.377) (149,277} {121,051}

Az at 31 Decembar 708,288 B27. 784 650,959 797,509

Less: Portion classdied as

curart biltios deses  (mawm  oess 022
Mon-curent partion 631,798 705,568 343 &7 7 871
L

L 15
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39 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

{a) Mevements in compenants of equity

The reconciliation batween the epening and closing balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set cut in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the
changes in the Company’s individusl companants of equity batween the beginning and the end
of the year are sat owt below:

rESEre
AN B D00

Aa ol ¥ Janvary 2013 18871955 16,802,307 4,563,271 11,324,888 45,583,841
Issum of new shares 192,754 851,453 - - 1,044,449
Tomal comprehensve meome

far the year - - - 2101534 2,161,538
Dwvicends ceclared n reapeact of

the previaus year - = - {T76.5800 (7765800
Appropeistion of sialutgey

resanye funds - - 248,011 24a,011) -
Trander to reterve funds and others - - a3 421.943) -

A ot 31 Decermber 2013 and

1 Janusary 2014 13,084,751 17,654 960 5233245 12,069,890 4B 042 845
Total compeehentve income

far the year - - - 2 848,749 2848785
Devidends ceclared n respect of

the previaus year - = = &AM [S92.8700
Appeopeistion of statutary

regerve funds - - 285,331 {285,331} -
Trantder to reserve funds and athen - - agm aa.0ty) -
As ot 31 December 2014 13,084,751 17,454,960 5,166,587 13,792,447 50256745

154 At CHINA LUMITED | Arnusl Repen 3014

265/304



EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)
oOoOooodn

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS f

[Preparad wnder Wiernatonal Financal Hopoang Standsnd
Exariiad ir Taaminki e athorighe sdicatsed]

39 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(a) Movements in compenents of equity (Continued]

Under the PRC Company Law and the Company's articles of association, profit after taxation
as reported in the PRC statutory financial statements can anly be distributed as dividends after
allowances have been made for the following:

il meking up prio years” cumulative losses, if any;

{if) allocations to the statutory reserve fund of at least 10% of the after-tax profit, until the
fund reaches 50% of the Company’s registered capital {for the purpose of calculating
transfers to reserves, profit after taxation would be the amount determined under
CASs. The wansfers to reserves should be made befare any distribution of dividends to
shareholders. The statutory reserve fund can be used to offset previous years' losses, if
any, and part of the statutory reserve fund can be capitalised as the Company’s share
capital provided that the amount of such reserve remaining after the capitalisation shall
not be less than 25% of the share capital of the Companyl; and

fii}  allocations to the discretionary reserve fund if approved by the sharehalders.

The above reserves cannot be used for purposes other than those for which they are
created and are not distributable as cash dividends,

As at 31 December 2014, in accordance with the PRC Company Law, an amount of
approximately RMB20,823 million (2013: RMB20,823 million) standing to the credit of the
Company’s capital reserve account, and an amount of approximately RMB5.747 million
{2013: RMBS5,233 million) standing to the credit of the Company's reserve funds, as
determined in accordance with CASs, were available for distribution by way of a future
capitalisation issue. In addition, the Company had retained earnings of approximately
RMB13,8481 million available for distribution as at 31 December 2014 (2013: RMB12.134
million).

(b) Share Capital

The number of shares of the Company and their nominal values as at 31 December 2014 and 31
December 2013 are as follows:

Wumrter MNominal

ol sharey valug

2013 3
RME'DE0

Regmtared, ssued and fully pak:
H'shares of RMB1 .00 each

Tradable 4,562,683,364 4,562,681 4,562,683 384 4,562,683
A shares of AME1.00 each:

Tradable 8,329,271 ,30% 8329272 8,329.271.309 8,329,272

Trade-rastricted * 192,796,300 192,794 162,785,331 152,756

13,084,751.004 13,084,751  13.084,751,004 13,084 751

. The trade-restricted shates of 192,796,331 dhares as at 31 Decembar 2014 and 31 Decembar 3013
wire swed en 30 January 2013,

Tha H shares and A shares rank pari passu, in all material respects, with the state legal parsan

shares and non-H foreign shares af the Company., ___:}_JL_..-«'
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39 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

{c) Treasury shares

Az at 31 Decamber 2014, the Group owned 29.99% equity interest in Cathay Pacific (2013:
29.99%), which in turn owned 20.13% equity interest in the Company (2013: 20.13%).
Mccordingly, the 29.99% of Cathay Pacific’s sharsholding in the Company was racorded in the
Group's consolidated financial statemeants as treaswry shares through deduction from equity.

{d) Dividends

Company
2074 2013
RME 000 RIEB'000
Final dividend proposed after the end
of the reporting pericd 683,417 592,870
Final dividend in respect of the previous financial year,
declared and paid during the yoar 592,870 776,580

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, the profit after taxation of the
Company for the purpose of dividend distribution is based on the lesser of (i) the profit
determined in accordance with CASs; and (i} the profit determined in accordance with IFRSs,

Pursuant to the shareholders’ approval at the Annusl General Meeting on 22 May 2014, a final
dividend of RMB0.4531 (including tax) per ten shares totalling RMB5%3 million in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2013 has been paid out in 2014,

Pursuant to a resalution passed at the Directors’ mesting on 26 March 2015, a final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2014 of RMB0.5223 (including tax) per ten shares
totalling RMB&B3 million was proposed for shareholders' approval at the Annual General
Meating. As the final dividend is declared after the balance sheer date, such dinidend i not
recognised as & Rability as at 31 December 2014,

154 At CHINA LUMITED | Arnusl Repen 3014

267/304



EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)
oOoOooodn

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS f

[Preparad wnder Wiernatonal Financal Hopoang Standsnd
Exariiad ir Taaminki e athorighe sdicatsed]

39 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(@) Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safequard the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concemn and o maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximae shareholders” value.

The Group manages its capital structure and maekes adjustments to it in light of changes in
sconomic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013,

The Group monitors capital structure by reference to the gearing ratio, which represents tatal
liakilities divided by total assets. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporiing periods are as

follevars:
20712
RMEB OO0
Tatal habilities 150,200,797 147,537 099
Tatal assets 209,310,697 205,083 287
Gearing ratio T1.76% 71.94%

40 SHARE APPRECIATION RIGHTS

On 23 May 2013, the Company’s Annual General Mesting approved the “H Share Appraciation Rights
{"SARs") Scheme of Air China Limited” and “Initial Grant under the H Share Appreciation Rights
Schame of Air China Limited” {*the Schame")

Pursuant to the resclution of the board meeting dated & June 2013, 24,200,000 units of SARs were
granted to 160 employees of the Group st the exercise price of HK5&.46 per unit at & June 2013.
Mo shares will be issued under the Scheme and each SAR is notionally linked to one existing H Share
of the Company. Upon exercise of the SARs, a recipient will receive an amount of cash equal to the
difference between the market share price of the relevant H Share and the exercise price.

The 5ARs will have an exercise period of five years from the date of grant. Upon the satisfaction of
certain performance conditions after the second, third and fourth anniversary of the date of arant, the
total numbers of SARs exercisable will not excesd 30%. 70% and 100%, respectively, of the total SARs
granted to the respective eligible participants,

The fair value of the lishility for SARs is measured using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, The
risk frae rate, oxpocted dividand yield and expacted volatility of the share price are used as the inputs
inta the model. The fair value of the liability for SARs as at 31 Decernber 2014 was RMB19,262,321 (2013:
RMEBT, 427 480) and a corresponding staff costs of RMB11,834,841 was recognised during 2014 [2013:
RMBT 427 480) (note 7).
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 Decamber 2014, the Group had the following contingent liabilities:

(al

(b

(ch

{d

Pursuant to the restructuring of CNAHC in preparation for the listing of the Company's H shares
on the HKSE and the LSE, the Company entered into a restructuring agreamant (tha “Restructuring
Agreement”] with CNAHC and China Mational Aviation Corporation (Group) Limited ("CMACG®,
o wholly-owned subsidiary of CNARC) on 20 Movember 2004. According to the Restructuring
Agreement, except for iabilites constituting or arising out of or relating to business undartaken
by the Company after the restructuring, no liabilities would be assumed by the Company and
the Company would not be lisble, whether severally, or jointly and severally, for debts and
obligations incurred prior to the restructuring by CHNAHC and CHNACG. The Company has
also undertaken to indemnify CMAHC and CMACG against any damage suffered or incurrad
by CNAHC and CNACG as & result of any breach by the Company of any provision af the
Restructuring Agresment.

On 24 February 2007, the Eastern District Court of Mew York of the Federal Judiciary of the
United States filed & civil summaon against the Company and Air China Cargo, claiming that they,
together with a number of other airlines, have violated certain anti-trust regulations in respect
of their air cargo operations in the United States by acting onoconcert in iMposing excessive
surcharges to impede the offering of discounts and allocating revenue and customers so as to
increass, maintain and stabilise air cargo prices. The Court & currently considering whether the
case shouwld proceed as a class action. Because the litigation continues, the Directors of the
Company are af the wiew that the ultimate suteome of this claim cannst be reliably estimated
and consider that no provision for this claim is needed accordingly.

In May 2011, Shenzhen Airlines received a summon issued by the Higher People's Court
of Guangdong Province in respect of a gusrantee provided by Shenzhen Airlines on loans
borrowad by Huirun from a third party amounting to RMB320,000,000. It was alleged that
shenzhen Airlines had entered into several guarantes agreements with Hulrun and the third
party, pursuant to which Shenzhan Airlines acted as a guarantor in favar of the third party for
the loans berrowed by Huirun. The directors of the Company consider that the provision of
RMB 130,000,000 which was provided in prior years in respect of this legal claim is adequate.

Shenzhen Airlines provided guarantees to banks for certain employees in respect of thair
residential loans as well sz for certain pilot trainees in respect of their tuition loans. As at 31
Dacembaer 2014, Shenzhan Airines had outstanding guarantess for employees’ residential loans
amounting to RMB412,301,273 (31 December 2013: RMBA75,979.454) and for pilot trainees’
tuition loans amounting to RMB225,%87,570 (31 December 2013: RMB273, 167, 834).
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

The Group's principal finaneial instruments, ather than derivatives, comprise bank loans, loans from
CNAF and corporate bonds, obligations under finance leases, cash and cash equivalonts and pledged
deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations.
The Group has varicus othar financial assets and lishilitses such as accounts recaivable and accounts
payable, which arise directly from its operations,

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, mainly including principally interest rate swaps
contracts. The purpose i 1o manage interest rate risk arising from the Group's operations.

The Group operates globally and generates revenue in various currencies. The Group’s airline
opearations are exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, and jet fuel
price risk, The Group's oversll risk management approach is to moderste the effects of such volatility
on its financial parformance.

Financial risk management policies are pericdically reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors
and they are summarised below.

(a) Credit risk

The following table sets forth the maximem credit exposure of the Group, within which loans
and receivables granted and deposits sre placed at carying amount, net of any impairment
losses, and derivatives are at current fair value. For financial guarantees and loan commitmaents,
the maximum exposure represents the maximum amount the Group could be required 1o pay
without consideration of the probability of the actual outcome.

2014 2013

RME QR0 RME OO0

Cash and cash eguivalents 0.459,987 14,761,830
Pledged deposits 74,570 745,847
Due from the ultimate holding company 150,079 238,417
Financial assets 12,534 11,350
Accounts receivable 2,834,130 2,861,147
Bills receivable 155 131
Cther receivables 2,847,849 2874957
Deposits for aireraft under operating leases 523,338 428 375
Guarantoes 638,289 749,147
Commitments 105,948,893 95,141,050

122,709,824 117,811,281

The above-mentioned financial assets are mainly neither past due nor impaired. Further
quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from accounts
receivable are disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements.
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

1400

{a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group's cath and cash equivalents are deposited with banks in Mainland China, overseas
banks and an associate. The Group has policies in place to limit the exposure to any single
finaneial institutian.

A significant portion of the Group’s air tickets are sold by agents participating in the Eilling and
Settlements Plan (the "BSP"), a clearing system between airlines and sales agent= organised by
the International Alr Transpartation Association. The balance due from the BSP agents amounted
to approximately RMES01 million or 33% of accounts receivable as at 31 December 2014 (2013:
RMB 1,069 million or 37% of accounts receivable).

Except for the above, the Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with the
exposure spreading over a number of counterparties

Liguidity risk

The Group’s net current liabilities amounted to approximately RMB3%,790 million as at 31
December 2014 (2013: RMB44,257 million), The Group recorded a net cash intlow from
operating activities of approximately RMB14,0464 millian for the year ended 31 December
2014 (2013: RMB14,608 million), For the same period, the Group had a net cash outflaw from
investing activities of approximately RMB10,313 million (2013: RMB20.638 million). The Group
also recorded a net cash outflow from financing activities of approximately RMBB,B5% million
for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: net cash inflow of RMB%,271 million). The Group
recorded o decresse in cash and cash equivalents of spproximately RMES, 108 million for the
year ended 31 Decembar 2014 and an increase of approximately RMB3,241 million for the year
ended 31 Decomber 2013, respectively.

The liguidity of the Group @ primarily dependant an its ability to maintain adeguate cash inflows
from operations to meet its debt obligations as they fall due, and its ability 1o obtain external
firancing to meet its committed future capital expenditure. With regard to its future capital
commitments and other financing requirements, the Company has afready obtained banking
facilities with several PRC banks of up to an aggregate amount of RMET10,3%5 million as at 31
December 2014 (2073: RMB145,2568 million), of which an amount of approximately RMB32, 355
million was utilksed (2013: RMBA3,684 million).

The Directors of the Company had caried out & detsiled review of the cash flow forecast
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014, Based on such forecast, the Directors
had determined that adequate liquidity existed to finance the working capitel and capital
expenditure requiremants of the Group, In preparing the cash flow forecast, the Directors had
considered historical cash reguirements of the Group as well a3 other key factors, including
the availability of the above-mentioned loans financing which may impact the operations of the
Group. The Directors are of the opinion that the assumptions and sensitivities which are included
in the cash flow forecast are reasonable. However, these are subject to inherent limitations and
uncertainties and some or all of these assumptions mey not be realisad.

At CHINA LUMITED | Arnusl Repen 3014

EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)
oOoOooodn

271/304



EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)
oOoOooodn

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ﬁ

Preparnd umder iternanonal Francal Boponing Standsni
Exariiad ir Taaminki e athorighe sdicatsed]

42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES [Continued)

(b)

Liguidity risk [Continued)

The maturity prefile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of the reparting period,
based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

The Group
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANMAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

{b) Ligquidity risk (Continued)
The maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities az at the end of the reparting pariad,
based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

The Company

Wikia | puwt | yuur betlenn T joan bt lem
rendmand faslpan  damipn
LuEy NETN ]

Azt e TET - - - TR TR
D b e st P comary wm . . - am o
Fraren Gaskney incadad in o

eyt and s LA - - - LEIT RN LETT B
Db g uesr fapce sy 430 LM Ny BIWY BMLR RN
e iearng bank keany 1°d ot Domowngs 1855200 L5050 WIRAE NI BBRND SB
Frovaen b maf cverhindy it N [ L E) LMY L8 L1 8
(arrien 1483480 . . - 12458 1,653 452

s PRI NS DMLR0 WEELT WESER

Sozour pase Uiy - - - TR TN
Due 1 fhe ulismuile beiiag deevsany NN - - - s R
T Labdibes ncuded m othir

yabiss i pomnals LABE - - - FE LI LT
Francill il E1 ] - - - 18 LA
Dither oy wrcier s emm 125N 1M MANMEM  MSEID O AMEE I
et b bk gty 34 cthe St HWI AZRI MNIER MBUE ANMR mwm
Feovmon kr =z e overhindy B 2% LN LR Fluiie | 01513
(airarien LR . - . L AR

el NARET MAME B KRN SR

162 AR CHINA UIMITED | Annusl Repen 2014

273/304



EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)
oOoOooodn

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS f

[Preparad wnder Wiernatonal Financal Hopoang Standsnd
Exariiad ir Taaminki e athorighe sdicatsed]

42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES [Continued)

(e) Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Group's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Group's policy is to manage its interest cost using @ mix of fised and variable rate debis. To
manage this mix in a cost-effective manner, the Group enters into interest rate swaps contract,
in which the Group agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed
and variable rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notianal principal
amount.

ik Interest rate profile

The following table sets out the carrying amounts, by maturity, of the Group's and the
Company’s financial instruments that are exposed to interest rate risk:

Groug
24 2013
Effective Effactie
intorest rate RMB ) intaredt rafe RMB'OC0
Fized rate:
Qbligations under
finance leases 1.41%-4.55% 11,747,285 181 E-4T79% 8,834,574
Interest-beanng bank kaans
and ather borrowings 0.00%-7.20% 27,621,773 257%-7.20% 27,614,521
Time deposs 1.35%-3.08% 14,842, 254) 1.35%-3.30% (8,545, B2%)
34,544,794 27,507,268
Floating interest rate:
CObligations wunder
finance leases (1.60%)-3.22% 2422477 {1.57%)4 50% 20,995 455
Intarast-beanng bank loans
and ather borrowings 0.77%-6.55% 50,6%3,848 0.81%-846% 54,152,101
Time deposits 0.35% 14,831,745) 0.35% {6,107, 440)
70,086,830 49,040,097
Total nat barmowings 104,633,624 04 547 345
et foed rate bomowings
a5 a percantage of
fatal net borowings 3% 8%
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

{c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(i} Interest rate profile (Continuad)

Company
2014 2013
Effective Effective
interest rate RMEBE" 000 inlerest raje AWB00
Fixed rate:
Obligations under
Finance laases 1.61%-4.79% 1,577,931 TAVE-4.79% B B3&,576
Interest-bearing bark loans
and other barrowings 2.40%-5.30% 20,558,979 J.4B%-5.30% 22,324,707
Time depeorits 1.35%-3.08% (2,045,000) 1.35%-2.30% 11,139,788
30,091,930 30,021,495
Floating interest rate:
Obligazions undes
finance lpases [1.460%)-2.54% 16,289,248 [1.57%}-2.54% 18,184,485
Interest-beaning bank (oons
and other bomowings 0.B&%-4.20% 31,596,051 0.86%-4.20% 32 mB370
Time depetiss 0.35% 11,163,720 (L35% 15,384, 308)
46,721,579 45 698 547
Tetal net bormowings 76,813,509 75,720,002
Mat fized rate borowings
a4 & percentage of
total net barmowings I¥ 40%

Interest on financial instruments classified as floating rate is repriced at intervals of less
than one year. Interest on financial instruments classified a3 a fixed rate is fixed until the
matwrity of the instrument. The other financial instrumaents of the Group that are not
included in the above tables are non-interest-bearing and are therefore not subject to
interest rate risk.

Téa At CHINA LUMITED | Arnusl Repen 3014
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES [Continued)

(e) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis

The fallowing table demonstrates the sensitivity to a ressenably possibla change in
interest rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's profit for the year and
equity (through the impact on flcating rate borrewinga) for the year (increase/{decreasel).

Profit for

the yoar
RME"DDO

31 Decamber 2014
IF intenest rate of borrowings iIncreases
by 50 basis poknts (262,826) {262,824}

31 December 2013
IF interost rate of borowings increases
by 50 basis paints (258,900 {258,900}

(d) Foreign currency risk

The Group's finance lease obligations as well as certain bank snd other loans are mainly
denominated in United States dollars and EURD, and certain expenses of the Group are
denominated in currencies other than RMB. The Group generates foreign currency revenue from
ticket sales made in overseas officas and normally generates sufficient foreign currencies after
payment of loreign currency expenses to meet its foreign currency fiabilities repayable within
oRE Year.

The following table details the Group's and the Company's exposure at the end of the reporting
period to currency risk: arising from recognised asssets or liabilites denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in RMB, translated using the spot rate at the year end
date,
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

{d) Foreign currency risk [Continued)

The Group
Expnure to foigign camincies (expressed in RME]
bl 2013
EUE0 HKS 158 EURD HES
RMB'0H0 RMIB'000 FBT00 FMBTC0 A0
Accounts necevatle 41,678 181,684 7098 199,747 202304 o3
Cither recatiables 1,649,823 e 2412 1R29.457E 415913 -
Cash and cash equialonts 1,403 447 0064 1009588 2454183 1363 1LER2
Accounls payable P09 (346723 [168,77B)  [15EN.GEEN (230N [E5,500)
Citligations undar Brance leases  (34,290,555) - = | {28.641,485) - -
Irterast-oaaning bank Ioans
4nd ather bairowings 49.043,738] (145,877} - ERESSAT TR -
Net exposere arsng bom
recopnesd pscets and labdises  (20,809.935] (141,024} E50.420  {75.201,737) (8437 LTav4T1
The Company
Expature to forsign camencies [expressed in BMB]
x4 F
EURD HES
RMB'000
Areounts recehable 150,875 125,440 1458 149,508 AN 2118
Cither recenables 1,366,783 528 9462 15544 4313 -
Cash and cash egquivalents 178,841 33489 12,599 271,478 58448 14,330
Accounts payasie (21,0821  (344,721) (063,998} {512,354} (189,707 #5108
Clcligations under Brance leases  (27,053.301) - - {2379,14) - -
ferest-beaning bank loans
anef athar bomowings (32009153 (N4587T) - 3078352 (4725 -

Net expouse ansng fom
recognised assets and labliges (389771071 (373,845 (137,879 | (55,294,043 BR.431) (11,258

184 AN CHINA LIMITED | Annusl Repen 2014
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES [Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk [Continued]

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting peried to &
reasonably possible change in the USS, EURD and HKS exchange rate, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group's profit for the year and equity (due to changes in the fair value of
menetary assets and liabilities) for the year lincrease/idecreasell

Prafit
for the year Equity
RMB* 000 RMBOO0
31 December 2014

It RMB appreciates against follawing currencies by 1%
United States Doflars 466,053 A6G,053
Euros 1,208 1.208
Hong Kong Dollars {6,378) (&, 378)
440,883 460,883

Profit

for the yoar Equity
RMB'D00 RMEB 000

31 December 2013
If RMB appreciates against following currencies by 1%

United States Dotlars 368,461 348 461

Euros 138 138

Haong Kong Dollars (13,121} {13,121}
355,478 355,478

(e} Jet fuel price risk

The Group's strategy for managing the risk on jet fuel price aims to provide the Group with
protection against sudden and significant increases in prices.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting paricd to a
reasonably possible change In fuel price, with all other variables held constant and excluding
the impact of fusl derivative contracts, of the Group's profit for the year and equity for the yaar

{increase/(decreasal):
Profit for
the year Equity
RMB' D00 RMB'000
31 December 2014
If jot fuel price increases by 5% (1,727,122) (1.727.122)
31 December 2013
I jet fugl price mcreases by 5% 11.6856,114) [1.685114)
S
.-;' 147
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

{f)  Fair value measurement
iy Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured

subsequent 1o initial recognition at fair value, grouped in to Level 1 to 3 based on the
degree to which the fair value is observable.

L Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured wsing quoted prices [unadjusted) in
active markets for identical financial instruments.

. Level 2: fair values measurod using quoted prices in active markets for similar
financial instruments, of using veluation technigues in which all significant inputs
are directly or indirectly based on observabla market data.

. Level 3 (lowest levell: fair values measured using valuatien techniques in which any
significant input is not based on observable market data.

as 8t 31 December 2014

Fair value Laval 1 Lovel 2
RMB'ODO RMB'GO0 RMB'O0D

Financial assots

- Interest rate swaps 1,761 - 1,761 -

= Listed aquity securities 10,773 10,773 = -
Available-lor-sale tnvestments

= Listed 51,454 51,454 - -

Financial liabilities
- Interest rate swaps 772 = T2 =

as at 31 Decamber 2013

Fair wvalum Lrwas] 1 Lovel 2 Level 3

RMB*00D RMBTTO0 RME"DDO RWB'0D0

Financial assote
— Intevest rate swaps 2,825 - 2,825 -
= Listied equity secunties 8,525 8,525 - -

Financial liabilities
= |nterest rate swaps 24,070 - 24,070 -

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there were no wransfers between Level 1 and
Leval 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3 (2013: Nill. The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting peried in
which they accur,

168 AR CHINA LUIMITED | Annusl Repen 2014
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES [Continued)

(f)  Fair value measurement (Continuad)
(@] Waluation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements
The fair value of interest rate swaps a5 at the end of the reporting period was estimated
by wsing the Rendleman:-Bartter model, taking into account the terms and conditions of
the derivative contracts. The major inputs used in the estimation process include volatility

of short term interest rate and the LIBOR curve, which can be obtained from cbsarvable
markets,

{ii)  Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at other than fair valus

The carrying amounts of the Group’s finencial instruments carried at cost or emortised
cost ara not matenially different from thair fair values as at 31 December 2014 and 2013

43 COMMITMENTS

{a) Capital commitments

The Group and the Company had the following amounts of contractual commitments for the
acquisition and construction of property, plant and eguipment as at the end of the reporting
period:

Group Campany
2014 2013 2014 2093

RMB"000 AMB000 RMB'00D RMB'000

Contracted, but not provided for

— Adrcrait and Iight equipment 102,643,481 2,775,903 70,066,725 46,768,722
- Buildings 710,042 1,219,595 339,322 550,378
- Others 221,815 248728 212,169 24726

103,775,338 4080224 TOL1B.214 467,543,824

Authonsed, but not contractad for

— Buildings GEA.P57 129,588 536,644 551,722
- Others 51,202 274 899 26,305 274,899
740,249 1,004 487 562,951 526621
Total capital commitments 104,515,587 95088711 71,181,167 68,370,445
5 B
PR
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43 COMMITMENTS [Continued)

(b} Investment commitment
The Graup and the Company had the following amount of investrnent commitmant as at the end
of the reporting period:

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013

RMEDOD RMAD00 RMB'DDD RME'D0D

Contracted, but not provided for

- Associztes and joint ventures 1,391,055 56,339 1,356,055 21,339

Authorised, but nat contracted for
= Associates and joint wentures 62,251 - 62,251 -
1,453,306 56,339 1,418,306 21,339

{¢) Operating lease commitments
The Group and the Company lease certain office premises, aircrafe and flight equipment under
operating lease armangements.

At the end of the reparting period, the Group end the Company had the following future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases:

Group Company
2014 2013 2014

RME'D00 RME'000 RAME" (00

Within 1 year 5,234,739 6,799,506 3,860,487 5,407,999
Aftar 1 year but within 5 yaars 15,120,778 11126245 11,006,809 6,126,290
Cwer 3 years 14,9768 B.285.770 11,846,447 6,013,629

35,332,388 25,231,521 26,713,745 17,547 1B

gl At CHINA LUMITED | Arnusl Repen 3014
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44 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) During the year, the Group had the following significant transactions with (i} CNAHC, jts
subsidiaries (other than the Group), joint ventures and associates (collectively, the TCNAHC
Group™); (i) its joint ventures; and [iii) its associates:

(i} Service provided to the CHNAHC Group

Sales commission incom 14,364 13,343
Sale of cargo space 71,585 85,622
Gowvernment charer flights 420,731 379,688
Ground services icome 2,883 2,154
Air cataning incomn 13,579 15,466
Income from adwertising media business 28,57 31,132
Interest income 45,631 62,734
Aircraft and flight equipment leasing income 245 245
Others 1.811 1,652

599,421 294,09

(i} Service provided by the CNAHC Group

Sales commissicn expenses 3,642 3276
Air eatering charges 779,819 709,158
Airport ground services, take-off,
landing end depot expenses 744,308 403,350
Repair and maintenance costs 11,951 216
Management fees 108,977 85,913
Leasa chargas for land and buildings 126,308 122.275
Orther procurement and maintenance 55,059 38171
Aviation communication expenses 23,797 20899
Interest expenses 81,837 126,923
Media advertisement exponses 110,853 64,863
Construction management expenses - 13,694
Orihars &4 1016
2,047,045 1,790,754
5 By
&
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44 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a) During the year, the Group had the following significant transactions with (i} CNAHC, its
subsidiaries (other than the Groupl, joint ventures and associates (collectively, the "CNAHC
Group"}; (W) its joint ventures; and {iii) its associates [Continwed):

2013
R D00

fiii} Service prowded to joint ventures and associates

Sales commissipn come 14,471 13,751
Sale of cargo space 12,220 iz
Ground services income 104,663 88,786
Alrcraft mainlenance income 57,070 47 321
Air catering incoma 7,004 8,722
Frequent-flyer pregramme Income R 101,221
Lease income for land and buildings 18,597 18,055
Ajrline joint wenture income 21,767 14,695
Ajreraft and Hight equipment leasing income 5,773 25,582
Cithers 5,301 8,064
344,857 343,331
{v] Service prowided by joint ventwhes and associates

Sales commigsion expanses 34,830 40,761
Alr catering charges 21,381 37,965

Airport ground services, take-off, landing
and depat expenses 355,875 184,413
chair and mantenance costs 2,433,997 2,3?2.370
Aircraft and flight equipment leasing fees 535473 616,247
Lease charges for land and bulldings arz 2318
Cither procurement and maintenance 12,069 13.41%
Aviation communication expenses 255, 804 264,206
Purchase of aircraft and engines = 78178
Fraquent-flysr programme expenses 4,348 4,173
Othars 7,452 13.684
3,662,108 3,627 536

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the above transactions were conducted on
normal commercial terms and in the ordinary course of business of the Group.

Part of the related wransactions above also constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as dafinad in Chapter 14A of the HKEx Main board Listing Rubes.

) At CHINA LUMITED | Arnusl Repen 3014
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44 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a) During the year, the Group had the following significant transactions with (i} CNAHC, jts
subsidiaries (other than the Group), joint ventures and associates (collectively, the TCNAHC
Group™); (i) its joint ventures; and [iii} its associates [Continued):

Group
31 Dn:mﬂbﬂr 31 L'Jr:l:t:rrlhl:'l

2014 2013
RMB" 000 RMWEB000

v} Deposits, loans

Deposits placed with an associate 1,987,652 2,126,326
Loans from associates 2,695,000 2,498,000
(1] Outstanding balances with related parties
Due from the ultimate holding company 150,079 239,417
D from azsociates 180,914 135,257
Due from joint venturcs 106,120 18,977
D T eurva |::-!h.¢r r1‘:|h'|ud tnqnpﬂnir:: I!ﬂ,3?? ﬁ‘,a&s
Due to the ultimate holding company 21,377 36,729
Due to pssociates 270,905 300,983
Due to joint ventures 455,466 360,828
Due to other related companies FI7.0568 480791

The sutstanding balances with related paries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable within
one year of have no fived terms of repayment.

284/304



9 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Frepomed inder Intemations! Financial Beporting Standards]
IE:r.-qlw! ih Raamirbi wunleii stherahie ind=ated

44 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

{b) Guarantee with related parties

The Group
Inception Maturity Guaranty
Mame of Mame of Amount of date of date of Completad
guarantor guarantes guaranty guaranty guaranty F."l‘.l'lﬂ
Usoro0n

Cathay Pacific Air China Cargo B3.400 141252013 151272023 N

Cathay Pacific  Air China Cargo 85,750 12/03/2014 11/03/2024 N

Cathay Pacific  Air China Cargo 85,750 31/0372014 00372024 M

Cathay Pacific  Alr China Cargo &£6.5356 30/05/2014 V042026 N

Cathay Pacific  ~ Air China Cargo 68,126 290853014 29082026 M

The Company

inception Maturity Guaranty
Mame of Mame of Amount of date of date of Completad
guarantor guarantes guaranty guaranty guaranty 1Y/}
USE° 000

The Company  Air China Cargo 86,813, 16N22013 150122023 M

The Company Alr China Cargo 89,250 12/03/2014 11/03/2024 N

The Company  Air China Cargo 89250 31/03,2014 3000372024 ]

The Company Alr China Cargo 49,355 30vDLS2014 I0A2025 N

The Company  Air China Cargo 70,907 29/08,2014 2900872025 N

]  An analysis of the compensation of key management persannel of the Group is as follows:

Group
2074

RMB 000

2013
RMB000

EDINETOOOO

O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)

oOoOooodn

Compensation of key managemeant

Short term employee benelits 12,435 11,009

Post-employment benafits 1,145 1,022

Cash-settled share option expense 2,444 1,450
16,024 13,481

Furthar details of the remuneration of the Directors and supervisors are included in note 11 ta
the financial statements.

174 AR CHINA LIMITED | Annusl Repen 2014
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44 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d) On 25 August 2004, CNACG entered inte twa licence agreements with CNAC pursuant to which
CNACG has agreed to grant licences to CNAC, free of royalty, for the rights to use certain
wademarks in Hong Kong and Macau, respectively, so long as CNAC is a direct or indirect
subsidiary of CNAHC. Mo royalty charge was levied in raspect for the use of thess trademarks
during each of the two years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

(e) The Company entered into several agreements. with CNAHC regarding the use of trademarks
granted by the Company to CNAHC; the provision of financial services by CHNAF,; the provision
of construction project management services by China National Aviation Construction and
Development Company (*Aviation Construction & Development™); the subeontracting of charter
flight services to CMAHC; the leasing of propertes from and to CNAHC; the provision of air
ticketing and cargo services; the media and advertising service arrangement to China National
Aviation Media and Advertizsing Co., Ltd.; the tourism services co-operation agreemant with
CHAHC; the comprehensive services agraement with CNAHC, and the prowision of maintenance
by China Aircraft Services Limited,

(fi Commitments

{ik Imsastment eammitrments

Pursuant to equily transfer sgreements and the capital injection agreement enterad
between the Company and other sharshalders of an associate of the Group, the Company
commits to acquire interests from minority shareholders and inject additional capital to
the associate. As at 31 December 20714, the transaction is not been completed and the
outstanding commitment balance iz approwcimarely RMB533,570,000,

Pursuant to an equity investment agreement signed in 2009, a subsidiary of the Group
commits to contribute paid-in capital of RMBA5.000.000 to an associate. As at 31
December 2014, RME10,000,000 had been paid and the cutstanding commitment balance
is RMB3S,000,000.

Pursuant to an equity investment agreement, the Company commits to contribute capital
injection of USS9,680,000 to a joint venture of the Group. As at 31 December 2014, the
outstanding commitment balance is USS%,660,000.

Pursuant to an aquity investment agreemant signed in 2014 betweaen the Company
and the other shareholder of a joint venture of the Group, the Company commits to
contribute paid-in capitel of RMESD4. 210,000 to the joint venture, As at 31 December
2014, the outstanding commitment balance s RMBE04,210.000.

Pursuant to an equity investment agreement signed in 2012, the Company commits to
contribute paid-in capital of USSS5,000000 to a joint wventure of the Group. As at 31
December 2014, US51,500,000 had been paid and the outstanding commitment balance
i USS3,500,000.

286/304



EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O00Ooo(es9ss)
oOoOooodn

9 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Prepared under Intemations] Financial Reporting Standards]
|E::_r.-dlwﬂ' ih Raamirbi wunleii stherahie ind=ated

44 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

{f} Commitments (Continued)

(i) Operating lease commitments

The Group lease certain sircraft, flight equipments, office premises and warshouses
from related parties under operating lease arrangements. Leases for these assets are
negotiated for terms within 3 years,

Group
2014 2013
RMB 000 RMEB'O00
Operating lease commitments to associates 459,346 511,560
Operating lease commitments to
other related parties 26,329 21,185
485,475 532,745

(il  Capital commitments

Capital commitments are mainly reprasent the construction contracts between the Group
and Avistion Construetion & Development.

2013

RWB'000

Contracted, but not provided for:
- Capital commitments to other related parties 43,576 203,519

Authorised, but not contracted for
— Capital commitments to other related parties 493,118 508,194

] At CHINA LUMITED | Arnusl Repen 3014
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44 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(g) Transactions with other state-controlled entities

The Company it a state-controlled entity and operates in an aconomic regime currently
dominated by entities directly or indirectly controlled by the PRC government (“state-controlled
antities”)] through ita governmant suthorities, agencied, affiliations snd other organizations.
Other than those transactions with the CNAHC Group. sssociates, jointly wentures and other
related parties of the Group as disclosed in note 4d{a) above, the Group conducts transactions
collectively, but not individually, significant transactions with other state-controlled entities which
include but are not limited to the following:

- Purchase of jot fusl

- Leasing arrangements

- Purchase of equipment

- Purchase of ancillary materials and spare parts

- Ancillary and social services; and

- Financial services arfangemant

These transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of the Group's business on terms
comparable to thosa with other entities thaot are not state-controlled. The Group has established
its buying, pricing strategy and approval process for purchases and sales of products and

sarvices. Such buying, pricing strategy and approval processes do not depend on whether or
nat the counterparties are state-controlled entities.
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44 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

{g) Transactions with other state-controlled entities (Continued)

Having considerad the potential for transactions to be impacted by relatad party relationships,
the Group's pricing strategy, buying and approval processes, and what information would
be necedsary for an understanding of the potential effect of the relationship on the financial
statements, the directors are of the opinion that the following transactions with other state-
controlled entities require disclosure:

i The Group's main transactions with other state-controlled entities

Jist fual eosts 29,732,009 2B,357,7™M

{iij The Group's balances with other state-contralled entities

2013
RIB000

Accounts payable — jet fuel coss 1,819,154 2,704,000

i) At CHINA LUMITED | Arnusl Repen 3014
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45 OTHER EVENTS

(a) Investment commitment to CNAF

On 24 December 2014, the Company entered inta the equity transfer agresments with each
of AIE, A China Shantou Industrial Development Co. |"Shantou Industrial”], Beijing Phoenix
Aviation Industrial Ca. ("Phoanix Industrial®), pursuant ta which, AIE, Shantou Industrial and
Phoenix Industrial agreed to transfer the share interest to the Company at a consideration of
RMB28,045,845.88, RMB4,725,113.94 and RMB2,325,702.25, respectively. Upon completion of
the acquisitions, the Company will be interested in 24.14% in the registerad capital of CNAF.

On 24 Decemnber 2014, the Company and CNAHC entered into the capital injection agreement,
pursuant to which the Company and CNAHC decided to increass the registersd capital of CNAF
and inject additional capital into CNAF. According o the capital injection agreemeont, upon
completion of the capital injection, each of the Company and CNAHC will have an interest of
51% and 49% in the total enlarged reqistered capital of CMAF, respactively, and CHAF will
become a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The capital injection agresment will
bacome effective upan obtaining approval of the capital injection frem the Beijing Bureau of
China Banking Regulatory Commission after the Company and AMS Global enter into an equity
vansfer agreement for the Company to scquire the AMS Interests.

The capital injection has not been completed at the end of the reporting pericd,

(b) Investment commitment to Ameco

On 18 December 2014, the Company entered into the capital injection agreement with
Deutsche Lufthansa AG, Germany (“Lufthansa AG™), pursuant to which, the Company will inject
certain. assets as capital contribution to Ameco. Upan completion of the capital injection, the
Company and Lufthensa AG will hold 75% and 25% interests in Ameco, respectively, and Amaco
will become a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, The capital injection has not been
complated at the ¢nd of the reporting pericd.
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46 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASE has isswed & few amendments and
new standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2014 and which have not
been adopted in these financial staternants, These include the following which may be relevant to the
Group.

Effective for

ql::qun.ﬁng

periods beginning

an or after

Amendments ta 1AS 19, Dalinad benalil plans: Empbpes contributions 1 July 2014

Annual impravement to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle 1 duly 2014

Annual improvement to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle 1 July 2014

Amendments 1o IFRS 11, Accounting fov ecousitions of infenasts n fainf operafions 1 January 20186
Amendments to 1AS 14 and 1AS 38,

Clarification of scoepiable methods of cegreciatny and amartizatian 1 January 2018

IFRS 15, Revenue from comlachs willh cusiomens 1 danuary 2017

IFRS 9. Financial instramants 1 January 2018

The Group is in the process of making an asssssment of what the impact of these amendments is
expectod to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and Audit™, of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 522) coma into operation from the company's first financial year commaencing after
3 March 2014 (iLe. the company’s financial year which began on 1 Janvary 2015) in accordance with
section 358 of that Ordinance. The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the expected
impact of the changes in the Companies Ordinance on the consolidated financial statements in the
period of mitial application of Part 9. 5o far it has concluded that the impact is unlikely to be significant
and will primarily only affect the presentation and disclosure of information in the consalidated financial
statemants.

T8 At CHINA LUMITED | Arnusl Repen 3014
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
13.90 13.05 13.77 17.31 19.78
12.05 11.94 12.07 13.89 16.38
12.94 12.34 12.65 15.79 17.18
12.31 12.33 13.69 17.31 19.47

100
2014 12 2015 1 2015 2 2015 3 2015 4 2015 5

19.78 19.55 19.52 19.64 19.58 20.17

19.06 18.95 19.03 19.35 19.35 19.46

19.44 19.24 19.22 19.50 19.44 19.67

2006 100
2015 17

100
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Independent auditor' s report to the shareholders of Air China Limited
(Incorporated in the People' s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Air China Limited (the * Company” ) and its subsidiaries
(together the “ Group” ) set out on pages 77 to 180 which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2014, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give atrue and
fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards promulgated by the International Accounting
Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financia
statements that give atrue and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, aswell a evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2014 and of the Group’ s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financia Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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